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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) represent the largest
vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in China. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacturer of high-end knitwear on an
OEM basis. The Group was also the largest exporter of knitwear and
the largest PRC garment supplier to Japan according to the 2006
and 2007 report on the development of China’s garment industry
and the 2006 and 2007 annual report on China’s international trade
in textiles and clothing.

With the production base located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and a garment factory strategically set
up in Cambodia, the Group also established sales offices or branch
offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. Currently, the Group had
over 37,436 employees and the area of the factories spans across
1,100,000 sg.m., which can produce various knitwear of over 138
million pieces.

With the focus on producing causal wear, Shenzhou International
also extended to sports wear in recent years, with the major
international renowned sports wear clients including NIKE, ADIDAS
and PUMA. The market is also extended from Japan to Asia Pacific,
Europe and the US market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313.
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KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS
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For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—EENE e 3 —ETRE —ZThE —TTNE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
TERKEN Key Financial Information
(AR®F 1) (RMB’000)
HEH Sales 4,822,596 3,665,613 2,979,530 2,482,984 2,116,907
BR TS B A1 FI B Profit before income tax 757,420 401,736 409,247 355,774 620,445
FEFE Profit for the year 700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345 586,895!"
ARARREREA Profit attributable to equity
JE & 7 holders of the Company 699,380 406,882 389,031 351,487 587,539
FRBEE Non-current assets 2,619,575 2,203,185 1,821,114 1,330,951 1,136,914
MBEE Current assets 1,701,676 1,700,735 972,592 1,209,590 1,434,489
REEE Current liabilities 1,373,905 1,331,079 719,390 826,367 1,187,381
RBEETE Net current assets 327,71 369,656 253,202 383,223 247,108
BEE Total assets 4,321,251 3,903,920 2,793,706 2,540,541 2,571,403
BEERRDER Total assets less current liabilities 2,947,346 2,572,841 2,074,316 1,714,174 1,384,022
R Total equity 2,872,973 2,480,632 2,074,316 1,714,174 1,303,328
ReRBEEEEM Cash and cash equivalents 238,141 233,384 273,994 559,801 238,428
TERBLE Key Financial ratios
EFIE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 23.8 22.3 21.4 23.1 22.2
FRIEE (%) Net profit margin (%) 14.5 11.1 13.1 14.2 27.82
ERAELE %O Net gearing ratio (%)® 20.6 22.8 2.1 (0.1) 46.7
mE L Current ratio 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.2
RSz BEH(A) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 31 26 24 21 16
FEZEBH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 71 72 62 62 57
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TLo B ZIELE MBS ZFENRAE
A F % A AR316,676,0007T * Wit
AZBAENT K E AR25,061,0007T

ZEEFBEREARRKRERSS AEMGFE
7 B F % A AR 308,187,000t & A R
308,831,0007T ©

1.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2004 included a non-recurring
item of RMB303,769,000, representing gain arising from the disposal
of certain land use rights and buildings. Excluding this non-recurring
gain, profit before income tax was adjusted to RMB316,676,000, and
taking into account the tax effect of RMB25,061,000 arising from
such adjustment, profit for the year and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company were adjusted to RMB308,187,000 and
RMB308,831,000, respectively.

HE_ZZNF+_A=+—HIFE M 2.  Net profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2004 excluding the
BRIEERT L EREREFREIELCEK nonrecurring gain arising from the disposal of certain land use rights
Wik RFENFNEEREAER14.6% - and buildings was adjusted to 14.6%.

BERBELERZEABEENRRES K 3. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (less

CEBEYEGES IR

cash and cash equivalents) and total equity.
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RERENDWHEERE SALES BY PRODUCTS

HE+-A=t+-HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
“ZENE —TT+E ZZTREF ZTTRE i3
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ARET R % ARBTRT % ARETR % ARETR % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

REM By products
UNGEE Casual wear 2,398,304 49.7 2,248,981 61.5 2,374,491 79.7 2,028,015 81.7 1,911,170 90.3
BERE Sports wear 2,042,315 42.3 1,165,198 31.9 463,607 15.6 230,478 9.3 45,648 2.2
ARRE Lingerie 248,929 5.2 147,920 4.0 35,577 1.2 - - - -
Hih st Other knitting
products 133,048 2.8 93,514 2.6 105,855 3.5 224,491 9.0 160,089 7.5
HEBMA Total sales 4,822,596 100.0 3,655,613  100.0 2,979,530  100.0 2,482,984  100.0 2,116,907 100.0

2.6% 3.5%
4.0% <77 12% 77

31.9%
42.3%

49.7%

9.0% 7.5%
@ KREmRE
Casual wear
@ EHmRE
Sports wear —ETNE
O RXRE 2004
Lingerie

O Huit e
Other knitting products
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BmEsHoMNEESRE SALES BY REGIONS

HE+-A=t+-HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
“ZENE —TT+E ZZTREF ZTTRE i3
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ARET R % ARBTRT % ARETR % ARETR % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

A By regions
EFRHE International sales
AA Japan 2,437,304 50.5 2,178,725 59.6 2,250,287 75.5 2,017,248 81.2 1,885,709 89.1
B Europe 751,442 15.6 515,602 141 339,337 1.4 159,341 6.4 33,123 1.6
xH us 261,079 5.4 298,830 8.2 105,627 3.6 79,418 3.2 77,842 3.6
HEtEER Other countries 455,497 9.5 268,112 7.3 105,121 3.5 42,716 1.8 33,969 1.6
BAHE Domestic sales 917,274 19.0 394,344 10.8 179,158 6.0 184,261 7.4 86,264 41
HEBMA Total sales 4,822,596 100.0 3,665,613  100.0 2,979,530  100.0 2,482,984  100.0 2,116,907 100.0

6.0%
10.8% 3.5%

7.3% 3.6%
11.4%

8.2%
9.5%

5.4% 14.1%

59.6%

15.6%

7:4% 1.6%4.1%

o)
® =Ex 1.8% 369

Japan
@ B
Europe
o =&
us
0 HmER
Other countries
@ ERHEE
Domestic sales

—ERNEF

2004
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REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
RN EEZER AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Chen Zhongjing

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Su Shounan

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED
ACCOUNTANT
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (Chairman)

Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Ma Renhe (Chairman)
Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Dai Xiangbo
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ROBFETHRE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House, North Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands, British West Indies

ROBFELEERDE

ERPRBABRARAA
EBEF

ERREFR183%R
A

17181712-1716 %

Nomination Committee

Mr. Huang Guanlin (Chairman)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISER

Troutman Sanders Solicitors
Rowdget W. Young & Company

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House, North Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands, British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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A ERTT Bank of China

HREIRTT (BHB) AR AT Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

B IRTT China Construction Bank

RERERITAERRDA CITIC Ka Wah Bank Ltd.

BERITHERAA Hang Seng Bank Limited
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EEARERRT Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

BB LBELERITERAR The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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The largest vertically-integrated knitwear
manufacturer in China
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To all shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to announce the
annual results of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for 2008
for all shareholders to review.

Income from sales and results of operations of the Group
experienced ideal growth in 2008. More importantly, with dedicated
efforts from our management and our staff, the Group accomplished
encouraging development in improving production management,
arrangement of production base, adjustment on product structure
and exploration of the global market, which laid a solid ground
for continuous and healthy development in the future. | am deeply
grateful and heartened that though confronting the rigorous
economic environment, the Group could still achieve sound
operations results during the year. | also hope that our investors
recognize the Group’s achievement and support the strategy of the
Group’s business development. The outlook of the Group will further
flourish in the future.

The Group enjoyed solid financial conditions during the year ended
31 December 2008. Sales for the year amounted to approximately
RMB4,822,596,000, representing an increase of 31.9% as compared
to 2007. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by 71.9% from RMB406,882,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007 to RMB699,380,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008. Earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.56.

In view of the positive business performance and sound financial
conditions of the Group, the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board” or the “Directors”) has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.20 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.18) per
ordinary share.
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The global economy is still undergoing ups and downs. The crisis
of financial system has deeply impacted the real economy. Affected
by slowdown of consumer demand, the growth in garment export
significantly dropped. According to the customs’ statistics, exports
of garment (including textile yarn, textiles and finished products and
apparel and apparel accessories) from China for 2008 amounted to
USD185.1 billion, representing an increase of 8.2% as compared to
2007 but the growth rate decreased 10.7% as compared to 2007, of
which the exports of apparel and apparel accessories accounted for
USD119.79 billion, representing a growth of only 4.1%. During the
year, approximately two-thirds of enterprises in the industry recorded
losses or were at the brink of loss. Problems such as insufficient
capital and overstock of products severely affected the development
of the garment enterprises. While the whole industry is facing a
crisis, a small number of garment enterprises which occupy the
leading positions usher opportunities of development.

| recognize that the PRC government has been launching supporting
policies frequently in order to safeguard the healthy development
of the textile garment industry. Since 1 August 2008, after three
consecutive adjustments, the tax rebate rate for export of garment
products has increased to 15%, and the textile garment industry
has been listed in the top ten industry promotion plan. In addition,
favorable factors, such as the implementation of the reform on
value-added tax, decrease in bank borrowing rates and stabilization
of exchange rate between Renminbi and US Dollars, all served to
relieve the straits faced by textile garment enterprises. For foreign
markets, following the cancellation of textile quotas by European
Union in early 2008, the US-China Bilateral Textile Agreement has
expired. As a result, starting from 1 January 2009, the US will no
longer impose quotas on textiles from China. Thus, the development
of garment enterprises become increasingly dependent on their own
competitiveness and positions in the industry.

13
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| am of the view that with advantages of excellent infrastructure,
highly efficient logistics and transport and well-developed industry
auxiliaries, the coastal area of Eastern China, for a long period of
time, will be the processing base for middle and high end garment
worldwide. The Group will also continue to set that region as its
major production base. Meanwhile, to leverage the respective
advantage of coastal area and the midland region and conform
with the national policy of development of the economy of the mid-
western region and expansion of internal demand, the Group has
established garment production bases in Anging, Anhui Province
and Quzhou, Zhejiang Province. The plant in Anhui has commenced
production since the first quarter of 2009, while that in Quzhou
will seek to commence production in the third quarter of 2009.
The establishment of these bases not only expanded our garment
production capacity, but also effectively utilized the advantage of
domestic labour cost of those regions and enhanced the stability of
front-line production workers.

Along with business expansion, the Group has put strong emphasis
on energy-saving and emission reduction and achieved remarkable
success. In the past year, the price of energy and water resource
remained at record high. The Group reduced the energy and water
consumption per unit of product through technological reform,
facility upgrade and technical optimization, hence effectively
resisted the cost pressure arising from the rising price of resources,
better fulfilled the social responsibilities, in respect of energy
and environment, of the enterprise in its course of continuous
development. Pursuant to the water supply agreement entered into
by the Group and the authority of the local Government of Ningbo,
the PRC, quality water supply has been provided to the Group in the
agreed manner from June 2008, which stabilizes the cost of water
supply as well as strategically safeguards the safety on the use of
water by the Group.



FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

R =TT FH59.6%LH FAEER
HAM SR EEREEXEENLH TR
50.5%  ERBARTIGHHEERIR_-_ZETL
FHERT11.9% - EATSNHEREGEEE
BHLHBH T EFMI0.8%RRE LFHE
19.0% " AN BN H AR B IEER - B H
BEMBMENEMTHEIG T RFHIE
R-MENE2REHREETHEE-—MES
KEBEEEEBREENTE - EREEE
BRHERKER c— BAMBNASEER
MG BEONZOBY  REBEBHNEE
BREZETZATAZRNIER-

FRN EZQRRBEXREGETAE B
AEEEBERANBIERREIE AHEE
MEBRTIEHERRR - AR A AR E K
EREBNEEERNEERFARIERR
R\ BREFSEAE FHRABER
RIEERHRRENBERE -

AARHEUNEF - FRNFHE N R
WEREEABMNEREINFANE LR
SOREMMNBMTIEER T SEFAMRE
BB -AANEZRHHEUBRREPHAR
ANFERRT A THRMANEE T HHRIMNE
R RLFHIRIR -

RERW ARAFAMK - R EHETER T
BT LR NERKASEREAERFED
MHHBRERTIEXRBE STRYLE
RENNEE SERRERYERERITME
e E—TRAAREETERNESL
h - = HAEFAEEE RERGRER
B (@ 4 o

EFSTE
R

hEER —TTAE=A=+AH

Annual Report 08 4 %k

The Group’s sales to Japan as a share of the total turnover
decreased to 50.5% for the year as compared to 59.6% for 2007,
while the sales to Japanese market still increased 11.9% as
compared to 2007. Domestic sales as a share of the total turnover
increased rapidly from 10.8% in 2007 to 19.0%. In addition,
European markets and other markets including Korea, Hong Kong
and Australia also recorded solid growth. The globalization setting of
markets reduced the effect of fluctuation in demand in one particular
market on the Group’s operations. As one of the basic development
strategies of the Group, Japan remains the core market segment of
the Group in the future and play an important and indispensable role
in the stable development of the Group.

During the year, the Board worked closely with the professional
committees on the Group’s overall strategies and objectives,
and we have achieved significant results under our efforts. Every
staff of the Company endeavours to pursue a high standard of
corporate governance and ensure the fairness and integrity of our
decision-making process. We make every effort in promoting high
transparency of our governance and providing open communication
channels for all of our shareholders and investors.

| would like to thank the Directors for their great efforts during
the year, as well as the management and staff for their utmost
dedication, for it is their diligent work that contributes to the
realization of the established goals of the Group. Last but not least,
I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders and patrons
for their continual trust, which is the cornerstone of a brighter future
of Shenzhou International.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to adopt the strategy of
diversification of products and markets to develop itself into the most
competitive knitwear OEM. To address the problem of saturated
production lines, the Group will actively target opportunities to set up
new plants to further enhance the Group’s dominant position in the
industry, devote every effort to create value for customers and sound
rewards for shareholders.

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong

Ningbo, China, 26 March 2009
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Following the cancellation of the quota system for China’s textile
imports by the European Union (the “EU”) in 2008 and duly
cancellation of the quota system for China’s textile imports by the
United States (the “US”) with effective from 1 January 2009, there is
no quota system implemented for the textile exports. However, most
of the manufacturing enterprises in the industry were less optimistic
as expected towards the growth in textile exports. In addition to
concerns over the implementation of other strategies and trading
carriers in the foreign market, the enterprises also worried about the
impacts of global financial crisis and weakening consumer spending,
which in turn impacted the total export volume and prices of textile.
It is foreseeable that the competitiveness of the manufacturing
enterprises heavily depends on the development of products,
improvement of quality, cost control and delivery turnover following the
cancellation of the export quota system and the enterprises holding a
leading position in the above areas will attain better development.

According to the statistics from China Customs, China’s textile and
apparel (including textile yarns, textiles and products as well as
apparels and accessories, same below) exports for 2008 totaled
USD185.1 billion, representing an increase of 8.2% as compared with
last year but a decrease of 10.7% in growth as compared with 2007.
Of which, textiles exports amounted to USD65.31 billion, representing
an increase of 16.6% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. Apparels exports amounted to USD119.79 billion,
representing an increase of 4.1% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. However, the growth rate decreased substantially
by 16.8% as compared with 20.9% in 2007. In 2008, China’s exports
to 5 markets (the EU, the US, Japan, Hong Kong and Association
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of Southeast Asian Nations) amounted to USD112.69 billion in
aggregated, accounting for 60.9% of the total textile export value,
among which exports to the EU amounted to USD38.84 billion with an
increase of 37.9%, exports to the US amounted to USD25.36 billion
with an increase of 1.8%, exports to Japan amounted to USD21.32
billion with an increase of 8.3%, exports to Hong Kong amounted
to USD15.99 billion with a decrease of 11.9%, and exports to
Association of Southeast Asian Nations amounted to USD11.19 billion
with an increase of 2.9%. According to the analysis of each market,
the EU market showed a growth momentum during the first year after
the cancellation of the quota system, while the growth rate of US and
Hong Kong markets decreased considerably as compared with 2007.

During the year, among the top five provinces in textiles exports,
Zhejiang province ranked number one and its exports amounted to
USD42.24 billion, representing an increase of 18.7% as compared
with last year. The exports of Guangdong province, ranking number
two, amounted to USD34.13 billion, representing a decrease of
18.7% as compared with last year. The exports of Jiangsu province,
Shanghai City and Shandong province amounted to USD29.20 billion,
USD16.61 billion and USD15.53 billion respectively. It is obvious that
the textiles exports mainly focus on the eastern coast of the PRC and
the growth rate in exports is higher than the domestic average level.

According to the statistics published by the Customs General
Administration of China, China’s foreign import and export trading
for 2008 reached USD2,561.63 billion, representing a net increase of
USD387.8 billion or 17.8% and a decrease in growth rate of 5.7% as
compared with last year, in which exports and imports amounted to
USD1,428.55 billion and USD1,133.08 billion with a growth of 17.2%
and 18.5% respectively, realizing a trade surplus of USD295.47 billion.

Although China’s foreign import and export trading for the year

maintained its growth, the global economic slowdown triggered by
the international financial turmoil has significantly impacted China’s
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foreign import and export trading. In the fourth quarter in 2008, the
foreign import and export trading has experienced a downturn and
the growth in import and export during the last two months has been
decreasing. In response to the financial crisis, the PRC government
focused on sustaining economic growth and increasing employment
as its most important works. The government also introduced a
series of policies for the labour intensive knitwear industry. According
to the “Notice in respect of adjustments to the tax rebates for certain
exports including knitwear” promulgated by the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation, the tax rebates for certain
textiles and apparels have been increased from 11% to 13% from 1
August 2008. Thereafter, government has implemented two upward
adjustments to the tax rebates for knitwear. From 1 November 2008,
the tax rebates has been increased by 1%. From 1 February 2009,
the tax rebates for textiles and apparels have been further increased
to 15%. In addition, the government has included textile industry
in its top ten industries rejuvenation plan and provided strategic
guidelines for the development of knitwear enterprises.

With an aim to reduce the tax burden of investment in equipments by
the enterprises, the PRC government has implement reformation on
value-added tax. From 1 January 2008, the enterprises were allowed
to deduct the value-added tax included in the acquired equipments.
This can avoid double taxation on the equipments acquired by the
enterprises, encourage investments and propel domestic demand,
facilitate improvements in technologies, adjust industry structure and
change the direction of economic growth.

On 21 July 2005, the People’s Bank of China issued the
“Announcement on Reforms to Improve the Renminbi (“RMB”)
Exchange Rate Regime” (B T & AR E R K # 6l 8
A% ) , announcing its decision to establish a more flexible RMB
exchange rate regime by abandoning the RMB peg to US dollars
and adopting a managed floating exchange rate for RMB based
on market demand and supply with reference to a basket of
currencies. As at 31 December 2008, RMB had appreciated by
6.9% as compared to 31 December 2007, while the exchange rate
was USD1 : RMB8.2765 prior to the reform, with an accumulated
appreciation of approximately 21.1%. Looking back to the overall
performance of 2008, the appreciation of RMB demonstrated a face
pace in the beginning but gradually showed down. In particular,
since the second half of 2008, the exchange rate of RMB and
US dollars has been maintained at a stable level. Following the
appreciation of RMB in past few years, its appreciation pressure has
substantially decreased.
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Following the implementation of the labour contract law from
1 January 2008, the labour cost of the enterprises has been
increased in general and certain products with lower added value
content and small enterprises with weaker profitability has been
materially affected. Coupled with the decrease in market demand,
some enterprises has suspended its business and production. The
shortage in labour forces has been twisted while the employment
rate in certain areas has showed an obvious decline trend. The
pressure from increasing labour cost has also been relieved.

According to the statistics of the National Bureau of Statistics,
cotton planting area in China amounted to 5.76 million hectares for
2008, representing a decrease by 0.17 million hectares as compared
to the previous year, while the total cotton production amounted
to 7.50 million hectares, representing a drop of 1.6% as compared
to the previous year. Foreign cotton planting area also recorded a
significant decrease, particularly the US, which led to a plunge of
the global cotton production. According to the statistics from USDA,
the global cotton production for the year 2008/2009 amounted to
23.914 million tons, representing a decrease of 8.88%. The drop
in purchase price of cotton resulted in lower incentive for cotton
growers to grow cotton, which may cause a further decrease in
cotton production. Hence, continuous significant drop of cotton
price becomes less probable and its rebound depends on the extent
of increase in market demand after recovery of economy.

Affected by the impact of financial crisis on real economy,
enterprises become more cautious of their capital investment. Price
of primary products in the international market, including crude oil,
minerals, metal, continued to decline significantly, posing a relief on
the pressure of rising CPI. The change in economic environment left
room for downward adjustment of interest rate. After six consecutive
increases in interest rate in 2007, in order to maintain economic
growth, the PRC government adopted a relatively relaxed monetary
policy and consecutively decreased the interest rate of loans of
Renminbi for five times during the year, which decreased the interest
rate for one-year Renminbi loans from a high of 7.47% to the current
5.831% and hence provided an obvious relaxation of the pressure on
enterprises’ capital costs.

After the wave of financial crisis, certain laggard garment producing
enterprises were eliminated from the market. As an important
industry in China, the garment industry will definitely be able to
survive the difficult times and maintain a healthy development
through structural adjustment and industry upgrade.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2008, Shenzhou International has remarkable achievements
in respect of its management in lean manufacturing, production
base layout, fine-tune in product portfolio and expansion to global
market. The business development during the year under review is
summarized as follows:

Strengthened Management in Lean Manufacturing

In 2008, the Group has improved its manufacturing efficiency and
effectively controlled its costs through strengthening its management
in lean manufacturing. During the year, sales income increased
by 31.9% from 2007 while average number of staff only raised by
13.9% as compared to last year. Furthermore, continuous measures
on technological reform, equipment upgrade and technology
optimization have reduced our consumption on energy and water
resource throughout our manufacturing process. Despite substantial
appreciation of Renminbi, over 10% rise in staff cost and rapid
increase in the price of energy and water resource, the Group has
effectively controlled its production cost by enhancing its internal
control and realized stable growth in operating profit amid the most
challenging time for the industry.

Optimization of Manufacturing Base Layout

Stable operation of our factory in Cambodia has ensured safety and
efficiency in our supply of product to major customers and further
In addition to the
manufacturing base established overseas, the Group has established

facilitated business development of the Group.

a new garment manufacturing base at Anging City, Anhui Province,
which is situated at central China, which is officially launched in the
first quarter of 2009. A garment factory situated at Quzhou City,
western Zhejiang Province, is under construction and expected
to commence production in the third quarter of 2009. Taking
accessibility as a prerequisite, the adjustment of the manufacturing
base layout has effectively leveraged on cost advantage of the local
manpower and benefit from localization of the staff, which assured
stability of our frontline production staff. By means of rational
layout of the manufacturing base, optimizing advantages of the
coastal and central areas respectively, along with the government
policies to develop the central and western economy and increase
domestic demand, a solid foundation has been built for the further
development of Shenzhou International to generate long-term returns
for the shareholders.
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Prominent Efficiency on Fine-tune in Product Mix

During the year, sales from sports wear further increased to 42.3%
to the total sales as compared to 31.9% for the year ended
31 December 2007 while the Group worked more closely with
leading sports brands. Sales from lingerie increased by 68.3%
to RMB248,929,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 from
RMB147,920,000 for the year ended 31 December 2007. Rapid
growth in sports wear and lingerie products have extended products
series of the Group and offered more comprehensive product
selections for our clients.

More Rational Layout of the Sales Markets

During the year, apart from the steady US market, the Group
recorded improved growth in sales to various markets.
Notwithstanding sales to Japan to the total turnover reduced from
59.6% for the year ended 31 December 2007 to 50.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s sales to Japan grew
by 11.9% from last year. Japan has been further consolidated and
developed as the most valuable market to the Group. The rapid
growth momentum of the domestic market persisted and sales
increased by 132.6% from RMB394,344,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007 to RMB917,274,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008. The increase in sales to the domestic market
has alleviated the effect on the Company’s operating results
subject to the exchange rate fluctuation. Moreover, the Group
achieved significant growth in the sales to European market and
other markets, which include Korea, Hong Kong and Australia.
Globalization of the market has lowered the influence of a single
market on the Group’s operation.

A More Reasonable Customer Base

After over four years of efforts, prominent progress on our strategy
to fine-tune the customer base has been achieved. Proportion of
sales to two leading global sports brands have furthered increased
to 33% of the Group’s turnover, effectively reducing its operational
risk arising from customer concentration and at the same time
restructuring the customer base.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales

Sales for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
RMB4,822,596,000, an increase of RMB1,166,983,000 or 31.9%
compared to RMB3,655,613,000 for the year ended 31 December
2007. The growth was mainly driven by 1) the continuous and sharp
increase in the sales of sports wear; 2) the successful expansion
into the global distribution markets; and 3) the acceleration of the
exploration of the domestic market.

Sales of the Group analysed by product categories for 2008 and
2007 are compared as follows:

BLE+-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—EENF ZTTLF 28
2008 2007 Change
AREBT R ARBFT ARBETT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
RE M By products
REERE Casual wear 2,398,304 49.7 2,248,981 61.5 149,323 6.6
EERE Sports wear 2,042,315 42.3 1,165,198 31.9 877,117 75.3
I HE Al 5 Lingerie 248,929 5.2 147,920 4.0 101,009 68.3
H b &4 on Other knitting products 133,048 2.8 93,514 2.6 39,534 42.3
HE BE Total sales 4,822,596  100.0 3,655,613  100.0 1,166,983 31.9
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For the year ended 31 December 2008, the significant growth in
the contribution from sports wear was mainly due to the continuous
increase in OEM operation for renowned sports brands after the
effective implementation of the refined strategy to increase the
proportion of highend products. Sports wear accounted for 42.3%
of the Group’s total sales for the year ended 31 December 2008,
representing a continual increase compared to 31.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2007.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007, sales from casual
wear amounted to RMB2,248,981,000, which increased to
RMB2,398,304,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008,
representing an increase of RMB149,323,000 or 6.6%. The Group
has continued to improve the quality of casual wear and shorten the
delivery turnover to ensure adequate supply to key customers and
optimize both product and customer structures.

Sales of lingerie for the year ended 31 December 2008 increased
by RMB101,009,000 or 68.3% to RMB248,929,000 from
RMB147,920,000 in the year ended 31 December 2007. The Group
has provided the customers with comprehensive choices by rapidly
increasing the lingerie products and expanding its product portfolio.

Sales of the Group analysed by regions for 2008 and 2007 are

EMBEDHHEERELE: compared as follows:
BE+t=-A=1+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—EENE —ETLF g
2008 2007 Change
ARETR AREFT ARBETIT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
=M% By markets
H A Japan 2,437,304 50.5 2,178,725 59.6 258,579 11.9
B Europe 751,442 15.6 515,602 14.1 235,840 45.7
e The US 261,079 5.4 298,830 8.2 (37,751)  (12.6)
HBER Other countries 455,497 9.5 268,112 7.3 187,385 69.9
BREHE/NaT Sub-total for
international sales 3,905,322 81.0 3,261,269 89.2 644,053 19.7
A=k Domestics sales 917,274 19.0 394,344 10.8 522,930 132.6
HEBE Total sales 4,822,596  100.0 3,655,613  100.0 1,166,983 31.9
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In addition to the effort made for strengthening the market presence
in Japan, the significant increase in the contribution to turnover from
the markets in Europe and the other market consists of Korea, Hong
Kong and Australia in the year ended 31 December 2008 was mainly
attributable to the Group’s diversified strategy and the demand from
worldwide markets of certain clients. The markets in Europe and
the other market accounted for 15.6% and 9.5% of the Group’s
total sales for the year ended 31 December 2008, compared to
14.1% and 7.3% for the year ended 31 December 2007. Under the
financial turmoil, the sales in the US market in 2008 decreased to
RMB261,079,000, representing a decrease of 12.6% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The sales in the US
market accounted for 5.4% of the Group’s total sales in 2008, as
compared to 8.2% in 2007.

Domestic sales of garments amounted to approximately
RMB819,880,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 (For
the year ended 31 December 2007: RMB320,424,000),
attributable to the continual economic growth in the Mainland China,

mainly

the increase in consumer demand for the high-end sports wear
and the increase in supply of sports wear to clients of international
renowned brand names for domestic sale.
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COST OF SALES, GROSS PROFIT AND NET
PROFIT

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2008 amounted to approximately RMB3,673,524,000 (2007:
RMB2,841,753,000). The gross profit margin of the Group’s
sales for 2008 was 23.8%, which is approximately 1.5% higher
as compared to 22.3% for 2007. Under the deteriorating global
economic environment and the pressures from rapid appreciation
of Renminbi and increase in labour cost in 2008, the Group has
achieved considerable increase in gross profit margin. The growth
was mainly attributable to 1) the effective reorganization of the
product structures and continual improvements in the internal
productivity adopted by the Group; 2) the inclusion of gain of
RMB128,215,000 (2007: RMB15,817,000) from forward exchange
hedges between US dollars and Renminbi into its turnover. Based
on the abovementioned reasons, the profit after taxation for the
year amounted to RMB700,452,000 (2007: RMB408,088,000),
representing a significant increase of 71.6%.

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY’S
EQUITY HOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders was RMB2,860,387,000 (2007:
RMB2,469,118,000). Non-current assets were RMB2,619,575,000
(2007: RMB2,203,185,000), net current assets were
RMB327,771,000 (2007: RMB369,656,000), non-current liabilities
were RMB74,373,000 (2007: RMB92,209,000) and minority interests
were RMB12,586,000 (2007: RMB11,514,000). The increase in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders was mainly due
to the increase in retained profits.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2008, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB755,614,000, while that for 2007 was approximately
RMB307,017,000. Net borrowings (bank borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2008
amounted to RMB592,701,000, an increase of RMB27,635,000
as compared to that as at 31 December 2007, which amounted to
RMB565,066,000.

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December
2008 amounted to RMB238,141,000 (2007: RMB233,384,000).
The total balance of our borrowings was RMB830,842,000
(2007: RMB798,450,000, of which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB740,013,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB58,437,000), in which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB766,597,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB64,245,000. Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to RMB2,860,387,000 (2007:
RMB2,469,118,000). The Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with a debt to equity ratio (total outstanding borrowings as
a percentage of equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders)
of 29.0% (2007: 32.3%).

As at 31 December 2008, the majority of the borrowings of the
Group were subject to fixed interest rates. The Group did not enter
into any interest rate swaps to hedge against the risks associated
with interest rates.
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FINANCE COSTS AND TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2008, finance costs went up
from RMB34,279,000 for the year ended 31 December 2007 to
RMB51,417,000, mainly due to the additional bank borrowings to
finance the extension of plant and equipment contributed to the
increase in the corresponding interest expenses. The Group’s USD
and RMB loan interest rates during the year ranged from 4.22% to
8.12% and 4.54% to 7.47% respectively (2007: 6.18% to 6.67%
and 5.27% to 8.22% respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded an
income tax charge of RMB56,968,000 as compared to an income
tax credit of RMB6,352,000 for the year ended 31 December
2007, mainly due to the recognition of a loss from derivative
financial instruments of RMB104,073,000 in the year 2007 and
the corresponding recognition of deferred income tax credit of
RMB19,267,000. The increase in income tax charges in 2008 was
mainly attributable to the expiry of the tax exemption for a major
PRC subsidiary of the Company. During the year, the subsidiary
was subject to a 50% reduction in CIT at a rate of 9% and thus the
increase in tax rate resulted in an increase of income tax charges.

According to the “Notice by the PRC State Council on the
Implementation of the Grandfathering Preferential Policies under
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law”, the applicable tax rate in the
coming years for our manufacturing subsidiaries in Ningbo Economic
& Technical Development Zone will be 20% in 2009; 22% in 2010;
24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012. The entitlement of certain companies
to the preferential tax treatment of a 2-years exemption and a 50%
reduction for 3 years may subsist according to the original tax law
and administrative regulation until the expiry of the tax holiday.
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PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, buildings and land use rights of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB179,893,000 (as at 31 December
2007: RMB169,350,000) as at 31 December 2008 were pledged
to secure a medium to long-term loan facilities of USD21,000,000
granted by the Zhejiang branch of the Export-Import Bank of
China. As at 31 December 2008, the Company has borrowed
USD13,000,000 (as at 31 December 2007: USD8,000,000) from the
bank.

USE OF THE COMPANY’S PROCEEDS FROM
THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Public Offering Proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company for listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in November 2005, after
deducting related share issue expenses therefrom, amounted to
approximately HK$856 million. During the period from the date of
listing to 31 December 2008, all of such proceeds had been utilized
in accordance with the proposed use as set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 15 November 2005 (the “Prospectus”), as
follows:

approximately HK$198,120,000 (approximately RMB198,511,000)
for the acquisition of new dyeing and finishing equipment for the
Group’s production facilities in China;

approximately HK$183,880,000 (approximately RMB180,340,000)
for the acquisition of new plant and equipment in China for the
production of functional fabrics mainly used in sports wear;

approximately HK$70,000,000 (approximately RMB70,072,000)
for the acquisition of new weaving and knitting equipment for the
Group’s production facilities in China;
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approximately HK$51,000,000 (approximately RMB53,050,000) for
the acquisition of new cutting and sewing equipment for the Group’s
production facilities in China;

approximately HK$305,000,000 (approximately RMB317,261,000)
for partial repayment of the Group’s long-term bank borrowings; and

approximately HK$48,000,000 (approximately RMB49,930,000) as
additional general working capital of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, all of such net proceeds have been
utilized in the manner disclosed in the Prospectus.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RISKS

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in United States Dollars
whilst its purchases were mainly settled in RMB, its costs and
operating profit were subject to exchange rate fluctuations. The
Group adopted a policy to hedge part of its exchange risks in light
of existing fluctuations of the exchange rate between USD and
RMB. The amount to be hedged would depend on the Group’s USD
revenue, purchases and capital expenditure requirements, as well as
market forecast of fluctuations in the USD to RMB exchange rate.

To safeguard itself against reductions in value and the volatility
of future cash flows which might result from any exchange rate
movement between RMB and USD, the Group had arranged an
appropriate amount of USD borrowings. As at 31 December 2008,
out of our total bank borrowings, USD borrowings amounted to
RMB208,455,000 (USD30,500,000 based on the original currency)
(31 December 2007: RMB436,450,000 (USD59,750,000 based
on the original currency)). In addition, the Group had entered into
foreign currency forward contracts for hedging against certain
foreign exchange exposures, in particular, exposure to the forecast
sales denominated in USD. As at 31 December 2008, the total
amount of the outstanding USD forward contracts designated to
hedge the exchange risk of the future sales was approximately
USD273,500,000 (as at 31 December 2007: approximately
USD490,000,000).
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had over 37,436 employees.
Total staff costs, including administrative and management staff,
accounted for approximately 19.1% of the Group’s sales during
the year, representing a decrease of 0.3% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year. The Group remunerated its staff
according to their performance, qualifications and industry practices
and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration policy. Employees
would receive bonuses and monetary awards based on their ratings
in annual performance appraisals. The Company also offered
rewards or other incentives to motivate personal growth and career
development of the employees, such as ongoing opportunities for
training to enhance their technical skills and product knowledge as
well as their knowledge of industry quality standards. All new staff
members of the Group are required to attend an introductory course.
There were also various types of training courses available to all the
employees.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
During the year, the Group’s total investments in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights amounted to approximately
RMB572,290,000, of which approximately 15% was used for the
acquisition of production equipment, approximately 82% was used
for the construction of new factory buildings and the acquisition of
land use rights, and the balance was used for the purchase other
fixed assets.

Pursuant to a series of agreements entered into by the Group and
the Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, the Group would pay
an amount of RMB129 million to the local government, including
relevant pipeline constructing costs of approximately RMB26 million
and waterworks transformation cost of RMB3,000,000, in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply, at a preferential rate, for a
terms of 20 years. The supply of water resources has commenced in
June 2008.
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As at 31 December 2008, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB167,382,000 (as at 31 December 2007:
RMB250,912,000) in connection with the acquisition and
construction of properties, plants and equipment, which will be
financed by internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

FUTURE PROSPECT AND STRATEGIES

This financial turmoil sweeping across the world has deeply
impacted the global economy and the garment industry of the
PRC has felt the pinch of the ebbing foreign market demand. In
the meantime, the financial turmoil has also facilitated the industry
upgrade and structure reorganization of the whole industry and
provided good development opportunities for the leading apparel
production enterprises. As a result, the Group looks forward to
further development to come.

Leveraging on our solid foundation built through market expansion
and reorganization of our product and customer structure in the past
few years, the Group is able to overcome the difficulties encountered
by the textile and apparel industry. The Group will further tighten
its cost control, improve production efficiency and enhance lean
production management to increase the profit margin of the
products.

The Group will continue to optimize the vertical integration of
processes from weaving and knitting, dyeing and finishing, printing
and embroidery to cutting and sewing, strengthen the coordination
and cooperation of each procedure, expand our garment production
capacity by improving the efficiency of the existing equipment,
balance the productivity of each procedure and maximize the
utilization rate of its assets. In 2009, the Group will ensure the full
utilization of the productivity of the garment factory in Anging, further
improvement of the production efficiency of the garment factories
and completion of the new garment factory in Quzhou City, Zhejiang
Province. The Group will also seek for other opportunities for the
construction of new plant in an active approach.
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The Group will continue to recruit talents, increase the investments
in product research and development and promote high-end
development of products, in particular, fully leverage on the
competitive edges of the Group in fabric developments. The Group
will consolidate the competitiveness of its products in the consumer
market by adhering to product diversification and improving the
product quality. With the improving fabric technologies, the Group
believes that the sales of sports wear and lingerie will achieve
optimal performance in the future.

With an aim to overcome operating difficulties under the financial
crisis together with our customers, the Group endeavors to provide
better ancillary services to our customers, including shortening the
delivery turnover of the products and providing examination services
of the products to our customers.

The Group will strive for optimizing the structures of its production
bases; fully leverage on the competitive strengths of different
production bases; focus on the production procedures with high
added value, technology intensive, high resource consumption and
high requirements to the ancillary facilities in the coastal area and
shift certain of the cutting and sewing procedures to the labour
intensive central area.

Expansion into the global distribution markets has been the objective
of the Group in the past few years and the Group will consider
the impacts towards the structure of the distribution market when
identifying customers. The Group will consolidate and further
develop the market in Japan as one of its important distribution
markets and also concentrate on the development of the distribution
market in the PRC. In addition, the Group will strive for achieving
a balanced development in the EU, the US, Korea and Australia.
With an appropriate market structure, the Group attained a good
performance in the face of the rapid appreciation of Renminbi and
decrease in the market demand in the US during 2008.

The changes in the global economic environment have speeded up
the reorganization of the garment industry. The Group will seize every
development opportunity to consolidate its leading position and
become the largest vertically-integrated garments manufacturer in
the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently stable
in cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of Shenzhou International through continuing training
for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covered all the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) since 9 October 2005.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among certain Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 48 to 54. There is no other material

financial, business or relevant relationships among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

Day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct,
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional

business

advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.
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All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board Meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” Section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for more than
one third of the members of the Board. The Independent Non-
executive Directors are outstanding executives or experts in the
textile industry who bring with them expertise in different areas. They
provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.
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Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to directors to ensure timely access the relevant information to
discharge of their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 5 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2008, with all Directors attended, except for Mr. Qian
Feng, who was absent from 1 meeting as he has another business
engagement.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters. Since Mr. Qian Feng needed
more time to deal with his private business, he resigned as a director
of the Company and duties of all the committee on 30 December
2008. The Company would like to express its deepest appreciation
on the contribution Mr. Qian had made to the Company during his
term of service. The vacancy left was assumed by Mr. Su Shounan
on the same date. After Mr. Su has assumed the office until 31
December 2008, the Company did not convene any meetings of the
Board and its 3 sub-committees. The Company welcomes Mr. Su to
join us.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.
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Board Committees

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has set up three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees have been structured
to include a majority of Independence Non-executive Directors as
members in order to reinforce independence. All of the Committees
are governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005, which comprises
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Renhe, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Dai
Xiangbo, and Mr. Ma Renhe is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. No director will take part in any discussion
on his or her own remuneration. The details of their fees are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance

in 2008. At the meeting, it reviews the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005, which comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Guanlin,
Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr. Dai Xiangbo, and Mr. Huang Guanlin is
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; review the structure, headcount
and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board for any proposed

changes.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance
in 2008. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring directors for shareholders’ approval at
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), and recommended Mr. Su
Shounan as independent non-executive director of the Company to
fill the vacancy following the resignation of Mr. Qian Feng.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors and to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case of
an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to re-
election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Director
are appointed for specific terms for not more than three years.
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Each of the Directors on appointment to the Board, is given a
comprehensive training on corporate governance and the model
code for securities transaction. The Company will continue to
provide ongoing training for the Directors to ensure that they would
be able to comply with the stringent regulatory requirements.
The Company has also established and operated a “securities
information” platform that allows Directors to have timely information
of the securities market and familiarize themselves with the rules
of the securities market, with a view to ongoing enhancement of

corporate governance standards.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.28 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005,
which currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dai Xiangbo, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Zong
Pingsheng. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Dai Xiangbo,
whose expertise in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to
provide leadership for the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and

effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance for the
year ended 31 December 2008. At the meetings, it reviewed the
2007 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2008 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business

operations.
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Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2008 are set out in the following table.

The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board Meetings was

98.3%.
HE/ BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Exgez ENZERS FMEES REZEE® RREFAE
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

BYFGTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BHEE 4/5 2/2 2/2 - 1
Mr. Qian Feng
rEELE 5/5 2/2 - 2/2 1
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
FHRLE 5/5 2/2 2/2 2/2 1
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
BEmEE - - - - _
Mr. Su Shounan
HITES
Executive Directors
BRREE 5/5 - - - 1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEMEE 5/5 - - 2/2 1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
SCMEE 5/5 - 2/2 - 1
Mr. Ma Renhe
REFEE 5/5 - - - 1
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
gt 5/5 - - - 1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
MBHE FINANCIAL REPORTING

EZeHOAEEEEREEEAFTHNAR
ARE XREEESFIMIE QMM EE
WERANELGERREKE - AAAE
EREM SR BRI ERIRA  FIEHIE &
B BB ELRAE -BEERNEVBRE
EEAKENRERREASFELTELRS
PRI AR B R A -
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The Board acknowledges of its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view and in
accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in
Hong Kong as published by the HKICPA. The Company has selected
appropriate accounting policies and has applied them consistently
based on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates.
The Directors endeavoured to make a fair and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s current conditions and prospects in the
financial report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

The Group has had in place for many years an integrated framework
of internal controls and its framework as illustrated below:

Under our framework, Management is primarily responsible for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls, while
the Board of Directors and its Audit Committee oversee the actions
of Management and monitor the effectiveness of the controls that
have been put in place.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by Management or
the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the Audit
Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit issues are
tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress
reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior management
periodically.
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BEIEIRIR

o MVANRIERMNER URtESNEZEER

o REBAMG BREE B BEREAETHEZFAEE

o (ERFEHMEIEHEBAERE H &R

Control Environment

e Sets tone of organisation influencing control consciousness of its people

e Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, authority and
responsibility

e Foundation for all other components of control

B

o HIETHR BF - URREEEMNIESI B AT

e RKE—ZRJEFEMSR B RE BE NERST EERERBEST
B B

Control Activities

e Policies/procedures that ensure management directives are carried out

e Range of activities including approvals, authorisations, verifications,
recommendations, performance reviews, asset security and segregation

of duties
EARBEBE
o 6@ AREE WOAB B M) & 51 - I R 1 B iR
o BRI EF

o ﬁ&ﬂ%éﬁ;ﬁr AndE BASBEETERHEBRTERBEUNREEBRRE
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Information and Communication

e Pertinent information identified, captured and communicated in a timely
manner

e Access to internal and externally generated information

e Flow of information that allows for successful control actions from
instructions on responsibilities to summary of findings for management
action

5
FEEESIERT —REER® T HER
o FENETEFEETHME
o EBEEREEIIE
e RNEBZRIME
Monitoring
e Assessment of a control system’s performance over time
e Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations
e Management and supervisory activities
e Internal audit activities

’E’#

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Committee will,
prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.
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The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to RMB1,750,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing
Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors
A copy of
the Securities Trading Code is provided to all Directors on their

securities transactions (“Securities Trading Code”).

appointment. Reminder will be issued twice a year, being one month
prior to the respective Board meetings approving the Company’s
interim results and annual results, reminding the Directors that
they are not allowed to trade on the Company’s securities prior
to the announcement of its results and that all transactions must
comply with the Securities Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed their strictly compliance with the relevant

provisions of the Securities Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior Management who, because of their office in the Company, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information,
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Securities
Trading Code.

PRICE-SENSITIVE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company:

° is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that information which is expected to be
price-sensitive should be announced immediately it is the
subject of a decision;

° conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on
Disclosure of Price-sensitive Information” issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in 2002 and other relevant guidelines

and changes therein from time to time.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, press
releases and presentations material can be retrieved through our
Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure that speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of the Shenzhou Group website
information listed above are available free of charge upon request to
the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

Shenzhou has a policy of open communication and fair disclosure.
Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate governance
standards, in that it provides our shareholders and other
stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form their
own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or Extraordinary General
Meeting (“EGM”) include a written notice of those proposals
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email
at kenjichan@shenzhougroup.com.hk or directly by questions at
an AGM or EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the
Company Secretary by the same means.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
Governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

AMENDMENTS TO THE LISTING RULES AND
THE CODE

In light of the amendments made to the Listing Rules and the Code
with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company has incorporated
such amendments in its corporate governance practices
commencing 1 January 2009 and will strive to improve its corporate
governance in the future.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Jianrong (E#%8), aged 44, is an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the overall
business development strategy of the Group and has over 28
years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (48 B 4% 45 &% ) and
Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (#u )N B &1 4% AR 2
8% ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of the
knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. Mr. Ma is a deputy to the
People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province and a standing committee
member of Beilun District of Ningbo. He was named “Charity Model
of Ningbo (Z )& Z# ) " by Ningbo Charity Association ( % )i
MEE4F) in September 2003.

Mr. Huang Guanlin (E@M) , aged 43, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 21 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology ()T T %
A2 ) majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been acting as the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (F{=#1), aged 48,
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for

is an Executive Director and

dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over 32 years of
experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989,
he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting
and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the
manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and finishing
department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting as a deputy
general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. He is a
cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father
are brothers).

Mr. Chen Zhongjing (R £58) |
and a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible

aged 46, is an Executive Director

for the daily administrative affairs of the Group and has 27 years
of management experience in administrative affairs. Mr. Chen has
obtained a certificate of corporate human resources manager. He
has been acting as a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting
since September 2003. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, he
worked for the People’s Government of Ningbo City, and served as
the head of Beilun District Committee Office of CCP (/1 it @
ZPWANZETE), a committee member of Beilun District Committee
of CCP in Ningbo City (R #itm@ZE&®Z& 8 ), secretary of Daqi
Township Committee of CCP (R ARIEZEE®ER) ,
head of the Management Committee of Ningbo Beilun Technology
Park (BRItmRBREREZSRIFE),
the headquarters in charge of the initial development of Beilun major
mechanical and electrical projects (1t % & ATE B Al i T {E1E18 56
#3548 ) | a deputy co-ordinating major mechanical and electrical
projects under the Ningbo government ( Z & B F B A EIE B 97
NEEEE) .

a deputy

the commander in-chief of

Ms. Zheng Miaohui ( #5#D18) |
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible for

aged 53, is an Executive Director

the financial management of the Group and has over 24 years of
experience in financial management. After joining the Group in 1988,
Ms. Zheng served as the manager and an assistant to the general
manager of the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has
been acting as a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since
April 2005. Ms. Zheng was retained by Beilun District Accounting
Association (E R T it mE &5 2
member and obtained an accountant qualification certificate.

®)as a standing committee
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Su Shounan (%%’ ) , aged 70, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group with effect from
30 December 2008. Mr. Su graduated from Textile Part-time College
(#h%5E3E 82K F) . He is a senior economist. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Su has worked as the General Manager of Shanghai Threegun
Group ( F/B=1E 5 B4 412 ) , Chairman and director of Shanghai
Underwear Group ( E/8 AKX ) and Factory Director of the Ninth
Knitting Manufactory (&4 JLEUE & ) . Mr. Su was appointed as the
Honorary President of the Fifth Session of the Executive Council of
Shanghai Underwear Trade Association ( F/8AXRITE M EE R
BEELZE2EK)in November 2006. He was also a member of the
Executive Council of Shanghai Labour Model Association ( & 45
HEGIHFEEEIEE) from July 1999 to June 2002.

Mr. Zong Pingsheng (3R 4), aged 74, joined the Group in
July 2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Zong
was employed as a teacher of the textile engineering faculty at
Southern Yangtze University (JLFE K2 ) (formerly known as Wuxi
College of Light Industry (ﬁiﬁ%iﬂl%%ﬁ%) and Wuxi University of

professor in 1987. Mr. Zong has been awarded a special government
allowance by the State Council in 1992.

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (&%), aged 46, joined the Group in July
2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. He graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (JT 74 Bf 4% K
) in 1984, majoring in industrial accounting, and completed
his postgraduate study in Zhejiang University (47T K2 ) in
2002, majoring in economics. Mr. Dai has obtained PRC certified
accountant and senior accountant certificates. He currently serves
as the deputy secretary of Zhejiang Certified Public Accountant
Association (/T & M E5TAIH S ) , a professor specially retained
by Zhejiang Finance School at Accounting College (/T Bf 48 E2fx &
st 27 ) and a member of the Registration Committee (;EMEZ 8 € )
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants ( 1 B 3 i &
e ) . He also serves as an independent non-executive director
of Haitian International Holdings Ltd. (/& KBIBRIZRR B R A A)) (its
shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange), Eastcompeace
Smart Card Co., Ltd. (R MFEa KB MHBR A A]) (its shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and Gem-year Industrial
Co., Ltd. (BRE XK M AR A F]) (its shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Dai served as the division head of
the Industrial and Trade Audit Division of the Audit Bureau in Zhejiang
Province (T A i /A TR EFMEE), the deputy director of the
Audit Bureau in Xianju County, Zhejiang Province (#T T IL/E &E 5t
/&) and the deputy head of the legal system division of Audit Office
in Zhejiang Province (W) T & &t EE AR ) .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Hu Jijun (EH£E) ,
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group

aged 39, is a deputy general manager of

in Japanese, European and U.S. markets and has 19 years of
sales and marketing experience in the Japanese knitwear market.
After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr. Hu worked at
the production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving as
the deputy manager and an assistant to the general manager,
responsible for export sales. He has been acting as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (BR&) ,
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such

aged 42, is a deputy general manager of

as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 20 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan ( Ei#i#) , aged 46, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 21 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( &7
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Ms. Chen Zhifen (R 2 %) , aged 39, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing department,
and has over 19 years of experience in textile industry. After joining
the Group in April 1990, she worked as the section chief, the
manager of its garment manufacturing department, the manager of
the No. 2 garment manufacturing department, an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group. During the period from September 2000 to
June 20083, Ms. Chen studied in Naval University of Engineering (/&
FETRAE), majoring in management engineering.
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Mr. Jiang Tao (JI7E), aged 41, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the departmental manager of No. 1 sales
department of Shenzhou Knitting, and has 14 years of experience in
knitting and weaving industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the faculty of
English at Shanghai University ( /& KXZ) | majoring in English for
international trade. Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai
Dongfang Rimian Company Limited ( -8R 5 B4 ER A F]) . After
joining the Group in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant
to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for
the sales to Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (E#4 # ), aged 44, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for technology and quantity
affairs, and has over 21 years of experience in textile industry. Prior
to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy factory
manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (Z% 1k @ lRE B in
charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager of the
production and operation department and an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#k#) , aged 42, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 20 years of experience in textile industry.
He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang Industrial University (/T T 2 K2) with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as the
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs in connection with fabrics and
technology.
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Mr. Yan Delin ( 5 #), aged 53, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, in charge of the infrastructure and its
Cambodian operations of the Group and has over 21 years of
experience in textile industry. He has obtained the certificate of
assistant economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as
the head of the equipment division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and
Garment Plant, the head of its office, and a deputy general manager
of joint venture companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office ( &1
WEP A E
a Cambodian company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After

, during which, he served as the general manager of

joining the Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy
head of the office of Ningbo Weaving and has been acting as an
assistant to the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May
2005. He graduated from the Correspondence College at the Party
School of the Central Committee of CCP majoring in economic
management.

Mr. Pan Lianghua (JER %), aged 53, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the knitting and
weaving operations of the Group, and has 34 years of experience
in the textile industry. He graduated from a self-study course of the
China Central Radio and TV University (R R E1H KX £)in 1987,
majoring in production operation management. Mr. Pan has served
as the deputy factory manager of Shanghai Knitting’s 20th Plant ( £
BET4 — 1+ /) , in charge of the technology department, and the
deputy head of the technology division of & =% & B 4% 1.
After joining the Group in January 1999, he served as the deputy
manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving
and was responsible for production and quality control.
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Mr. Wang Cunbo (E#Fi§) ,
Department of the Group and the financial controller of Shenzhou

aged 36, is in charge of the Finance

Knitting. He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (J#f
IIHEKRE),

a bachelor’'s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with
In the same vyear,
Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition, he
has obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant engaged in securities and futures-related
business. Prior to joining the Group in May 2004, he was a partner
of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm ( 22§ K fi 5k 1
BA @R EFT) , deputy general manager of Ningbo Yongde
Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( Z gk EMEE L
HETEFT) , and has over 6 years of experience in acting as certified
accountant.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (FRE&H®) ,
September 2008. Now, he is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan is a qualified accountant of the
Group and has over 13 years of experience in auditing, financial

aged 38, joined the Group in

controlling, company secretary and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration and a Degree in Master of
Science in China Business Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on page 70 to 155.

The Directors recommend a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.18) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2008, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 29 May 2009,
to the shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of
Members of the Company at the close of business on 25 May 2009.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2008.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB17,394,000, primarily attributable to the donations
after Sichuan Earthquake.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2008,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands,
amounted to RMB394,829,000, of which RMB219,593,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a prorata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 156.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2008.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2008.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Chen Zhongjing
Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Qian Feng
(resigned on 30 December 2008)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
Mr. Su Shounan
(appointed on 30 December 2008)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Huang Guanlin, Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Ms. Zheng
Miaohui shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In
accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Su Shounan shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Su Shounan, Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr.
Dai Xiangbo and as at the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination, at
any time, by either party giving the other party not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and is subject to
termination, at any time, by the Independent Non-executive Director
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Under the service contracts, each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus as the
Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided that
the aggregate amount of the discretionary management bonuses
payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial year of
the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Group after
taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate amount of the
discretionary management bonuses but before non-recurring items
for the relevant financial year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 34 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2008, none of the directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on page 48 to 54.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RAERATDEBERPZEFR Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
HERRABE BT
£ Bt SORERER RHEHE RAEH 2 Lt (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BREREE 1 NG 921,601,000 74.02
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 921,601,000 74.02
HEAMELE 2 NGIL 3 117,000,000 9.40
Mr. Huang Guanlin 2 Corporate interests 117,000,000 9.40
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2008, 900,000,000 shares were beneficially owned
by Excelbright Overseas Limited (“Excelbright”) which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Worldon (Hong Kong) Limited (“Worldon”), which
is, in turn, owned as to 74% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, as to 13% by Mr.
Huang Guanlin and as to 13% by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father of Mr. Ma
Jianrong). Apart from his interest disclosed above, Mr. Ma Jianrong
indicated in its latest disclosure form that as at 19 December 2008,
he was interested in, inter alia, 21,601,000 shares through his wholly-
owned subsidiary, CRN (HK) Ltd. As Mr. Ma Jianrong is entitled to
exercise more than one-third of the voting power at the general
meetings of Worldon, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 900,000,000 shares held by Excelbright.

2. Mr. Huang Guanlin indirectly held a 13% interest in Excelbright, which
owns a 72.29% interest in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31
5% o

December 2008, the following persons who held interests of
r more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than

directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members

BT ARS%E A EZ RES T required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
RAEARATRNEBRDPZHE Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
AR BT
£ Bt &3 SO RERER g gE| R4 H 2 L (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
2R 1 BB A 900,000,000 72.29
Excelbright 1 Beneficial owner 900,000,000 72.29
i 1k2  Em¥EAA 900,000,000 72.29
Worldon 1 and 2 Beneficial owner 900,000,000 72.29
B 5 - Notes:

—_

ERR-RXN_ZETHFNA +:EE§€J§ 1.

BRZBRESEMRIN AR AFHEAR
° \,2@/\¢+—
A=1+—B #EsF B8 BTkAr-

BITIARET72.20%HE 25

2. RIEZNF+-_A=+—HB @E%T 2

B EXFTIREE SN

AR B RREERATA%  FEHET LR
B13% ERAMEERFFE13% - FRKRELE

BREHEEZF - sMTERTERL
ERTERFTELLEENER AR ER
EEREHEBITIRAM HEE L LTSI
BREAGBA=D 2 —REE REESH
NEEGED SRR TEHRAERERER
E’JQOO,OOO,OOOHXHXT’ﬁ REEERER -

R-ZZEZNFE+-A

=B BRARAEF(ERmHEN X
[EER&ESTERABRARB BN A HE &S

ERR | —8)5N BIEREMALTRARAK

RN P HEAEIRIEE S R EKRAIE
33614 A Fredk 2 EmBUA R o

Excelbright, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands on 12
April 2005, held a 72.29% interest in the issued share capital of the
Company. As at 31 December 2008, the entire issued share capital of
Excelbright was held by Worldon.

As at 31 December 2008, the issued share capital of Worldon was held
as to 74% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, as to 13% by Mr. Ma Baoxing and as
to 18% by Mr. Huang Guanlin. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the son of Mr. Ma
Baoxing. Mr. Huang Guanlin is the son-in-law of Mr. Ma Baoxing and
brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As the entire issued share capital of
Excelbright is held by Worldon and Mr. Ma Jianrong controls more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Worldon, Mr. Ma
Jianrong is deemed to be interested in the 900,000,000 shares held by
Excelbright under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, no person, other

than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the

section headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and short

positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or short

position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that

was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2008 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

HERBEZ hHiEEEZ

A7 L (%) A7 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

BARER/BF The largest supplier/customer 8.01 35.40
AAMER,/BFE&F Five largest suppliers/customers

combined 26.07 78.80

RERTAEE BEEE REZBEAL
HAEMARR (REEAANEE R RFS%A L
BER)RZETEHEAXREFEETME
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S o
T
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions
between certain connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and the Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing for
which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company in the
Prospectus and announcements.

1. Connected Transactions

On 21 December 2007, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Bohai Road Land Use Right Transfer
Agreement, the Bohai Road Industrial Complex Transfer
Agreement, the Dagang Land Use Right Transfer Agreement
and the Dagang Industrial Complex Transfer Agreement with
Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”).
The total consideration for the acquisition of the above land
use rights and industrial complex is RMB39,500,000. On 21
December 2007, Tuteng Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
Tuteng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Huanghai Road Land Use Right Transfer Agreement
and the Huanghai Road Industrial Complex Transfer Agreement
with Shenzhou Properties. The total consideration for the
acquisition of the land use rights of Huanghai Road and the
Huanghai Road Industrial Complex is RMB113,500,000.
These considerations have been determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties thereto and is based on the
valuation reports as of 18 December 2007 prepared by an
independent valuer appointed by the Company.
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Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an Executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd (“Rongrong Industrial”),
an associate and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.
The acquisitions of the Bohai Property, the Dagang Property
and the Huanghai Property (collectively referred to as the
“Acquisitions”) thus constitute connected transactions of the
Company. The Group completed the above acquisition of
the land use rights and industrial complex and paid a cash
consideration of RMB153,000,000 during the year.

Continuing connected transactions
a. Lease of certain production premises and facilities

Shenzhou Knitting and Shenzhou Properties entered
into a lease agreement on 21 December 2007, pursuant
to which Shenzhou Properties leased to Shenzhou
Knitting the apparel production properties for a period
commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on 31
December 2010, with a right of renewal exercisable by
Shenzhou Knitting for a further term of three years at or
below the prevailing market rate (the “Principal Lease
Agreement”). The Principal Lease Agreement is terminable
by Shenzhou Knitting giving no less than three months’
notice to Shenzhou Properties. The rental so charged by
Shenzhou Properties is determined by reference to the
market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms during the course of ordinary business
in Ningbo, China. Shenzhou Properties, which is owned
as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director,
and as to 20% by Rongrong Industrial, an associate
and therefore a connected person by virtue of Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, rentals
paid to Shenzhou Properties by the Group amounted to
RMB7,262,000.
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Supply of steam

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Mingyao Environmental
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Mingyao Electric Company”)
entered into a steam supply agreement on 21 December
2007, pursuant to which Mingyao Electric Company
agreed to supply steam to the Group for a period
commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on 31
December 2010 (the “Steam Supply Agreement”). Under
the Steam Supply Agreement, Mingyao Electric Company
has undertaken to maintain sufficient and stable supply of
steam to the Group at all times and has granted priority
to the Group to satisfy its demand for steam from time
to time. As Mingyao Electric Company does not have its
own piping system connected to the Group, the relevant
parties have agreed that Mingyao Electric Company may
first sell its steam to an independent A-share company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share
Company”) which would then re-sell the steam to the
Group. The steam price per ton to be charged by the
A-Share Company to the Group will be at the price
charged by Mingyao Electric Company to the A-Share
Company. Pursuant to the Steam Supply Agreement,
the steam price per ton charged by Mingyao Electric
Company is determined by reference to the prevailing
market price of steam supplied by independent steam
suppliers located in the Ningbo Economic and Technology
Development Zone of China, but in any event, the
steam price per ton to be charged by Mingyao Electric
Company shall not be higher than the prevailing market
price of steam in the development zone. Either party
may terminate the Steam Supply Agreement by giving 30
days’ written notice to the other party. Mingyao Electric
Company is owned as to 48% by Worldon and as to
52% by Ningbo Mingyao Investment Co., Ltd., a party
not connected with any of the directors, chief executives,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, or any of their respective associates.
Mingyao Electric Company is a connected person by
virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the steam expenses paid to Mingyao Electric
Company by the Group amounted to RMB44,322,000.
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Provision of cutting services

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Shenzhou Dagang
Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Dagang”) entered into a
processing services agreement (the “Processing Services
Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant to which
Shenzhou Dagang agreed to provide or procure other
companies to provide certain cutting services to the
Group for a period commencing on 1 January 2008 and
expiring on 31 December 2010 on normal commercial
terms which are no less favourable than those available
from independent third parties. Shenzhou Dagang, which
is owned as to 80% by Worldon and as to 20% by
Rongrong Industrial, is a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the
processing services fees paid to Shenzhou Dagang by the
Group amounted to RMB9,739,000

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant
to which Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply
packaging materials to the Group from time to time on
normal commercial terms which are no less favourable
than those available from independent third parties.
The Packaging Material Supply Agreement is for a term
commencing on 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.
Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to 87.5% by
Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the brother of Mr. Huang
Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by Mr.
Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by
virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rule. During the
year, the amount paid to Huaxi Packaging Company
by the Group for the purchases of packaging materials
totalled to RMB24,467,000.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the aforesaid transactions had been
entered into (1) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (2) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and (38) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the
Company have provided a letter and confirmed that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (1)
have been approved by the board of directors of the
Company; (2) are in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (3) have been entered into in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the caps allowed
by the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the

Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year

ended 31

December 2008. A resolution for the re-appointment of

Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chairman

Ma Jianrong

Ningbo, China, 26 March 2009
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To the shareholders of
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Shenzhou International
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 155,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Financial Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2009
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—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
B o ARE T ARBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 4,822,596 3,655,613
5 B AR Cost of sales (3,673,524) (2,841,753)
EAH Gross profit 1,149,072 813,860
E AU A K ez Other income and gains 5 66,785 15,680
SHE R HK AR Selling and distribution costs (54,139) (47,648)
TEAX Administrative expenses (350,931) (257,395)
HhF X Other expenses (1,950) (88,482)
A& pK AR Finance costs 7 (51,417) (34,279)
B B4 A0 A PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 757,420 401,736
1A Tax 11 (56,968) 6,352
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 700,452 408,088
UTALTEEERD: Attributable to:
NEIREFEE A Equity holders of the parent 12 699,380 406,882
DR RS Minority interests 1,072 1,206
700,452 408,088
3= DIVIDENDS
R R EIE B Proposed final 13 219,593 186,531
BATEERKREIFE A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EihEREF TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
HAK Basic AER¥0.56t AR¥0.337T
—F[Z ) H — For profit for the year RMBO0.56 RMBO0.33
E Diluted
—FEFH — For profit for the year T8 FAN/A i FAN/A
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—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
B o ARE T ARBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EkRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W% BB k& Property, plant and equipment 15 2,273,680 1,973,982
-+ b {5 B A Land use rights 16 205,994 151,993
REFE A Long-term prepayment - 50,000
mEEE Intangible assets 17 127,668 521
RIETIBE E Deferred tax assets 27 12,233 26,689
BWIERBNEE Total non-current assets 2,619,575 2,203,185
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 732,426 695,509
JE UK BR 5k Trade receivables 20 487,038 325,771
FENRE -ZE R Prepayments, deposits and
E W 508 other receivables 21 117,291 99,270
THESRT A Derivative financial instruments 25 96,780 286,617
[REEREYER Pledged deposits - 184
R FEZHB=MA 2  Bank deposits with initial term of
IRITER over three months 30,000 60,000
e kReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 238,141 233,384
BREBEE Total current assets 1,701,676 1,700,735
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EAEREERE Trade and bills payables 23 286,969 305,887
E b ENFIB KL EETFIE  Other payables and accruals 24 283,998 119,959
PTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments 25 12,960 161,754
PRI REMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 766,597 740,013
FET B E A T FRIB Due to related parties 34 1,368 1,009
FEAS IR Tax payable 22,013 2,457
BWREAaE Total current liabilities 1,373,905 1,331,079
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 327,771 369,656
HEEBRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 2,947,346 2,572,841
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—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
B o ARE T ARBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 64,245 58,437
RIEIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 10,128 33,772
BWIERBAEE Total non-current liabilities 74,373 92,209
BEFE Net assets 2,872,973 2,480,632
% EQUITY
BATREFEA Equity attributable to equity holders of
LS the parent
BEITIR AR Issued capital 28 129,717 129,717
G Reserves 29(a) 2,511,077 2,152,870
¥R R HIR B Proposed final dividend 13 219,593 186,531
2,860,387 2,469,118
PERERER Minority interests 12,586 11,514
B Total equity 2,872,973 2,480,632
BEg HEM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
TE HITEH
Chairman Executive Director
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C ohdated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_TZN\F+_A=+—HLFE Yearended 31 December 2008

BRRRESEARL
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
EERS Eif #ik b8
BRIRE  BROEER  WhERE MEE REBRR  RERY RERS &  RRER L £
Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Hedging surplus  fluctuation Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

Wi ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Nole  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBIOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMBOOO  RMBIOD

(Hishog) (Hiztog(a)) (M to9(a)i)
(note 28) (note 29(a)fi) ~ (note 29(ail)
RZZ5+E-F—-H2&% Balanceat 1 January 2007 129717 762,499 - 332,871 (4,718) 653,805 187,628 2,061,802 12,514 2,074,316
ReREHARE Cash flow hedge reserve
-RAERESE - For fair value gains, net - - 211,768 - - - - 211,768 - 211,768
-ERREBMERTE — Amount released to set off
BakHMERL the impact of hedged
FeTE items that affected the
income statement, net - - (15,817) - - - - (15,817) - (15,817)
Exfg Exchange realignment - - - - (7,889) - - (7,889) - (7,889)
ERNERRDZEE Total income and expense
BRARAR for the year recognised
directly in equity - - 195,951 - (7,889) - - 188,062 - 188,062
FEFE Profit for the year - - - - - 406,882 - 406,882 1,206 408,088
FEANARER Total income and expense
for the year - - 195,951 - (7,889) 406,882 - 594,944 1,200 596,150
AARARERAR Dividends paid to the Company's
shareholders . . . - . S peTewm (187628 R
MY ERREARE Dividends paid to minority
shareholders - - - - - - - - (2,206) 2,208)
BE-BTCERURE  Poposed fnd 2007 dividend 1 - - - - o (ees3) 186531 - - -
EREREET Transfer from retained profits - - - 9,527 - (92,527) - - - -
RETEEL=A+-8  At31 December 2007 109717 762499 195951 425308 (12607) T8G9 186531 2,469,118 1514 2480632
RZZFENF-A-B28% Balanceat 1 January 2008 129,717 762,499 195,951 425,398 (12,607) 781,629 186,531 2,469,118 11,514 2,480,632
ﬁﬁmzﬁ%ﬁ 1% Cash flow hedge reserve
A ] - For fair value gains, net - - 2,407 - - - - 2,407 - 2407
-BRREBENEHY - Amount released to set off
?EﬁﬁiZ"T “FIE A Z the impact of hedged
a5E items that affected the
income statement, net - - (116,676) - - - - (116,676) - (116,676)
EXRE Exchange realignment - - - - (7,311) - - (7.311) - (7,311)
ERNERRAZEE Total income and expense
BRARAR for the year recognised
directly n eauty - - (114269 - 731) - - (21580 - 121580)
ERNE Proft for the year - - - - - 699,380 - 699,380 1,072 700,452
FEERARER Total income and expense
for the year - - (114,269) - (7.311) 699,380 - 577,800 1,072 578,872
AR ARERARE Dividends paid to the Company's
shareholders . . . . . o8BS (186531) S (i86s3)
RE-EZEN\EXRBRE Proposed final 2008 dividend 13 - - - - - (219,593) 219,693 - - -
ERERART Transfer from retained profits - - - 48774 - (48,774) - - - -
RZEENETZA=1-H At31 December 2008 129,117 762,499 81,682 474172 (19,918) 1,212,642 219,503 2,860,387 12,586 2,872,973
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BHE_ZTZN\F+_A=+—HBLFE Yearended 31 December 2008

—EEN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
Bt &E AR T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KEXEFBINELAE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
75 Al A1) Profit before tax 757,420 401,736
HE Adjustments for:
&R Finance costs 7 51,417 34,279
FLEMA Interest income 5 (4,358) (1,560)
HEME - - HE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
HREEE BB plant and equipment 6 1,950 135
AaE(WE) /S Fair value (gains)/losses, net:
B 18 58 -
METE-TFFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HHEB LIRS not qualifying as hedges 6 (16,620) 104,073
WM BE & Depreciation and impairment of property,
R E MORE plant and equipment 6 210,994 174,034
3t {50 R A g Amortisation of land use rights 6 2,677 1,981
B B B Amortisation of other intangible assets 6 3,941 31
1,007,421 714,709
FEEM Increase in inventories (36,917) (267,313)
JE A5 BR ZRE N Increase in trade receivables (161,267) (120,896)
ENFIE 'E Rk Increase in prepayments, deposits and
Hh fE R IR 3 N other receivables (18,021) (44,929)
FERTERFR & (Decrease)/increase in trade and bills
Z15 ORd) /i payables (18,918) 46,042
H i E X IB L EET  Increase in other payables and accruals
IR N 68,547 17,039
JES RS AL FIEE AN Increase in amounts due to related parties 359 965
[RELERERE Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits
A () 184 2)
REEXBRERS Cash generated from operations 841,388 345,615
2 AE Interest paid (51,417) (34,279)
2 HFH Profits tax paid (34,357) (4,319)
WEEIEFTBIREFE  Net cash inflow from operating activities 755,614 307,017
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—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
Bt &E AR TR AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKFBHEELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
2 HALE Interest received 5 4,358 1,560
BEVE BER Purchases of items of property,
HEIEE plant and equipment (497,620) (538,315)
LEWME- BE & Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
REHEB 2B HIE plant and equipment 847 1,931
U B + Hh {50 A A Purchases of land use rights (56,678) (21,600)
Wk H At & = Purchase of other intangible assets (3,088) (552)
Wi — K& A 7 Acquisition of a subsidiary - (16,467)
TS T A E|H Maturity of derivative financial instruments (68,849) (1,061)
MR FEFZFEAE=@A 2  Decrease/(increase) of bank deposits with
RITIEFOR A,/ (#h)  initial term of over three months 30,000 (60,000)
WEERSHIWEL ML FE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (591,030) (634,504)
BMETHFSHEESRE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
FERITER New bank loans 2,042,781 1,369,254
EERITER Repayment of bank loans (2,010,389) (888,140)
MEARIRERFE A Dividends paid to equity holders of
AT AR B the parent (186,531) (187,628)
A > SR SRR A R B Dividends paid to minority shareholders (500) (1,119
BMEFEES Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing
ORd) /WA FRE activities (154,639) 292,367
ReRBRESEEY NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
® CRd)FE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,945 (35,120)
FNReRIFEELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 233,384 273,994
[ERBE) s EF Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (5,188) (5,490)
FHRESRRELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 238,141 233,384
RERRESZEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
BER D AT CASH EQUIVALENTS
He MIR1THES Cash and bank balances 231,226 227,554
WETFR Short-term deposits 6,915 5,830
22 238,141 233,384
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—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
B o ARE T ARBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EkRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
KRB RRIZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 638,712 727,454
LKTHBAGZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 877,447 807,963
EETRIAE E Deferred tax assets 27 12,233 26,689
BRIERSEE Total non-current assets 1,528,392 1,562,106
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
H b & Y FR B Other receivables 21 463,129 365,991
JE Uk BR 5k Trade receivables 78,214 -
HehIBEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 9,816 6,859
BRENEE Total current assets 551,159 372,850
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE T ER X Trade payables 23 2,219 -
E 4th B 5008 Other payables 24 1,346 351
PTEERITA Derivative financial instruments 25 12,960 161,754
AFERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 26 151,906 -
JE AT BT JB A B FRIB Due to subsidiaries 172,690 24,750
BreadE Total current liabilities 341,121 186,855
REBEETFHE NET CURRENT ASSETS 210,038 185,995
EEFE Net assets 1,738,430 1,748,101
R EQUITY
BT Issued capital 28 129,717 129,717
G Reserves 29(b) 1,389,120 1,431,853
¥R R HAR B Proposed final dividend 13 219,593 186,531
AR Total equity 1,738,430 1,748,101
BE ZH B
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
TE HITEH
Chairman Executive Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of
the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of
the Company is Worldon (Hong Kong) Limited (“Worldon”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The intermediate holding
company of the Company is Excelbright Overseas Limited
(“Excelbright”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
policies generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2008. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries and are presented
separately in the income statement and within equity in
the consolidated balance sheet, separately from the parent
shareholders’ equity.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to
new and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has
had no effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial
Assets

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Funding Requirements and
their Interaction
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS

7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures -
Reclassification of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity to
reclassify a non-derivative financial asset classified as
held for trading, other than a financial asset designated
by an entity as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition, out of the fair value through profit or
loss category if the financial asset is no longer held for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, if
specified criteria are met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of
loans and receivables (if it had not been required to be
classified as held for trading at initial recognition) may
be classified out of the fair value through profit or loss
category or (if it had not been designated as available
for sale) may be classified out of the available-for-
sale category to the loans and receivables category if
the entity has the intention and ability to hold it for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not
eligible for classification as loans and receivables may
be transferred from the held-for-trading category to the
available-for-sale category or to the held-to-maturity
category (in the case of a debt instrument), if the financial
asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS

7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures -
Reclassification of Financial Assets (continued)

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value
on the date of reclassification and the fair value of the
financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes
its new cost or amortised cost, as applicable. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require extensive disclosures of
any financial asset reclassified in the situations described
above. The amendments are effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial
instruments, the amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group buys the instruments from
another party, or the shareholders provide the equity
instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses
the accounting for share-based payment transactions
involving two or more entities within the Group. As
the Group currently has no such transactions, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(c)

(d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession operators
and explains how to account for the obligations
undertaken and the rights received in service concession
arrangements. No member of the Group is an operator
and, therefore, this interpretation has had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit
under HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a
refund or a reduction in future contributions in relation
to a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as
an asset, including situations when a minimum funding
requirement exists. As the Group has no defined benefit
scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on these
financial statements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27

Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
— Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate '

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Business Combinations 2

Operating Segments '

Presentation of Financial
Statements '
Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements 2

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation '

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
ltems 2

Customer Loyalty Programmes 2
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate '

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation *

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners ?

Transfer of Assets from
Customers 2

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs

primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying

wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is

effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2009, other

amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2009 although there are separate transitional

provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
* Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5,

HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18,
HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29,
HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40

and HKAS 41.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the
segments and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical areas
in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1
January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity
presented as a single line. In addition, this standard introduces
the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of
income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense recognised
directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 1 (Revised)
from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. In accordance with the transitional provisions in the
revised standard, the Group shall apply the revised standard
on a prospective basis to borrowing costs relating to qualifying
assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is
on or after 1 January 2009.
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POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continueq)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d); or

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance
sheet date.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continueq)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each balance sheet date.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.

Water use right

Purchased water use right is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of twenty years.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Operating leases - as lessee

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual land
ownership rights exist. Prepaid land premium are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight line basis
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and
assesses whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract when the analysis shows
that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on these financial assets
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policy set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (i) the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (i) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the investments are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of
the other two categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains
or losses recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the
income statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as “Other income” in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments
are recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and significant changes in the technological,
market, economic, or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured or a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is
transferred from equity to the income statement. A provision for
impairment is made for an available-for-sale equity investment
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “Finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continueq)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (i) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such a derivative financial
instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to the income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)
The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

° fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment (except for foreign
currency risk); or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.
The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging
instruments’ effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes
in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the income statement. The change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the hedged item
and is also recognised in the income statement.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised
cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through
the income statement over the remaining term to maturity.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial
instrument for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to the income statement.

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases to
be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the
risk being hedged. If the hedged item is derecognised, the
unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a
hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or
loss recognised in the income statement. The changes in the
fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognised in the
income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income
statement when the hedged transaction affects the income
statement, such as when a forecast sale occurs.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the
income statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if
its designation as a hedge is revoked, the amounts previously
recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast
transaction or firm commitment occurs.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits with initial terms of three months or less, which
are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
palance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The Group’s contribution to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
schemes do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee in the current and prior periods.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rates
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to profit or loss with the
exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that
provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity.
These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net
investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as
the assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing date.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(*HK$”). The functional currency of certain subsidiaries located
outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As at
the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these companies
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(RMB) at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
and their income statements are translated at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate
component of equity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and consequently related depreciation
charges. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment and land use rights have any indication
of impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations, while that of land use rights has been
determined with reference to independent valuations.
These calculations and valuations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivable and other receivables. Provisions are applied
to trade and bills receivable and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of trade and bills receivable and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the years in which such
estimate has been changed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in one business segment,
the manufacture and sale of knitwear products, and most
of its operations and assets are located in Mainland China.
Therefore, no business segment or geographical segment is
presented.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

KE
Group
—EENF —EEEF
2008 2007
AR¥ T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 4,822,596 3,655,613
Hiw A Other income
AT B * Government grants * 19,842 14,116
RITF B U A Bank interest income 4,358 1,560
Hth Others - 4
24,200 15,680
U &5 Gains
HNEE W Foreign exchange gains 25,965 -
RN EW T Fair value gains, net:
PTHEITE-TFEE T Derivative instruments — transactions
B2 not qualifying as hedges 16,620 -
42,585 -
66,785 15,680

* BB EEHE T BEGTAEE
2 B o IR R 468 B N 7 B A A AR AR B
GRIFREIARE-

Government grants mainly represent bonus granted by local
government to the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to the government grants.
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6. FRBiATRIE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEZBEAAMBEEMR, (GFA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

KEE

Group
—2EBN\EF —ETF
2008 2007
B EE ARETR ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BEHEFERR Cost of inventories sold 3,503,504 2,686,812

ER NS Depreciation and impairment of property,

FERRBE plant and equipment 15 210,994 174,034
TSR £ 3 (8 R A Recognition of land use rights* 16 2,677 1,981
Hip B & EE Amortisation of other intangible assets** 17 3,941 31
RELEHERMNZ Minimum lease payments under

REREHE: operating leases:

BF Buildings 19,506 19,200

1Z S5 AN B Auditors’ remuneration 1,750 1,791

BEBAMEL (RIEEE  Employee benefit expense (including

e (FIsEs) ) - directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

Iﬁ& e Wages and salaries 867,705 668,361
RIRGTEIH R Pension scheme contributions 43,986 30,686
Hofth 48 7 Other welfares 10,546 9,031
922,237 708,078

[ ERRFRR Foreign exchange differences, net** (25,965) (15,726)

WHEFEEERFE Write-down of inventories to

net realisable value 18,945 148

NRME(UREE) /EIEFEE : Fair value (gains)/losses, net:

PTETA-THFAEH Derivative instruments — transactions

BRI R G not qualifying as hedges**** (16,620) 104,073

RITHEWA Bank interest income (4,358) (1,560)

LENE BEX Loss on disposal of items of property,

REHEE 2R plant and equipment 1,950 135
* AEEHR LHEAEDT ALE * The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in

Bakz [TTHEAIA- “Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

* AFEZEMEREE#HEDT AL **  The amortisation of other intangible assets for the year is
cHRuERZITTHREBRIR- included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.

o EREECFAGAREBEREZ [Etl ***  The foreign exchange differences, net for the year is included
NI in “Other income” on the face of the consolidated income

statement.

e HEZZTEN\F+ZA=+—BRZ ****  The fair value gains or losses, net for the years ended 31
TE+F+ A=+ —BLEFEZA December 2008 and 31 December 2007 are included in “Other
AEWREHEEFEE DA AGE income” and “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated
BaiRb [Halk Al R [EaRHx] income statement, respectively.

7o
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7. BERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
KEE
Group
—EEN\EF —EELEF
2008 2007
AR¥E T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARAFATZHEERZ Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other
RITEFR - BIR loans wholly repayable within five years
HEMERZHE 51,417 34,279
8. EEM& 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
RE _E 8 B BB Q&G 16115 Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
FIiREE RNEEZEEMESNT Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
—EEN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
AR¥ T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
we Fees 180 180
e REREMA S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,676 2,698
RARET BN Pension scheme contributions 20 18
2,696 2,716
2,876 2,896
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Executive directors and independent non-executive

directors

e
BER R
ne BN G 3 MewsE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it Y2 2008
HITES: Executive directors:
SREEE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 751 6 757
BEEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 579 5 584
SCmgE Mr. Ma Renhe - 439 5 444
BREBLE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 438 4 442
@it Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 439 - 439
- 2,646 20 2,666
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BETE Mr. Qian Feng (Resigned on
(RZZZNEF 30 December 2008)
TZA=ZTHEHE) 60 10 - 70
BSEiE Mr. Su Shounan (Appointed on
(RZEENF 30 December 2008)
+ZRA=+HRZf) - - - -
TEERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 10 - 70
BHREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 10 - 70
180 30 - 210
180 2,676 20 2,876




Annual Report 08 £ %}

RIS RR MR

Notes to Financial Statements

—EEZNF+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

8. EEME &) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) BTEERBIFHTES (a) Executive directors and independent non-executive
() directors (continued)
e
AR RIRETE
e EMF & R e @i
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
AREFT AR%ETT ARBTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“TELF 2007
BHITEE: Executive directors:
HRREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 740 6 746
BRMLLE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 583 4 587
SLMELE Mr. Ma Renhe - 447 4 451
BREELE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 445 4 449
BurErzt+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 439 - 439
- 2,654 18 2,672
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
i35 Mr. Qian Feng 60 8 - 68
REERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 18 - 78
BHREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 18 - 78
180 44 - 224
180 2,698 18 2,896

FRAVEEERELRERETAHS

Z Bk

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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IEREHNES
FRNAERSFHEEREMRE (=%
TEFE MBIEF FEFLHMEFBH
R EXHIEES - Htp =% (ZTTLF:
ZR)FEEBESFMER ZMEFIE
mr

NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2007: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2007: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the
year are as follows:

rE
Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
ARE T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EBREDNEZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,005 1,742
RIRET B3R Pension scheme contributions 10 10
2,015 1,752

MENFATENZFEERHMIE
BAH:

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

EEAH
Number of employees
—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
Z 21,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3
EBRER 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
—ZEENE —EELF
2008 2007
BmEX Sk Income statement charge for
— R K@ F K — Retirement benefit contributions 45,809 20,289

AEERTFEAEZZBEEX ZIAMH
BT E B < RS BIFRE - RZ
FiE AEEEREEFSEBCE
TEA L BENBBRTE ERAFER
BB RMEANMHR XAEBREE B
o

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.
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10. BIK\EHR (#)

11.

RE B IMRIR R B A TE 2 5 EERAIR
BERAERZARNERTESRIKE
MEtEl (TeEetE ) 2RBES H—
AAERF BB E - HRTVIZEER
EXFHe s KEABN XN ARER
BEERIEATNERIBRRM
BemBet I CEEFABYIER
EeRN BAKENEESIRFTAE K
KBz BREHFRABE S EELHE

RETE2ENER -

RRBEREIEIMEU L2 EZENBER
AN (RFEE)BR AR (THMRE
REARFHAEHREIRTRERS
& AR RAR T I 3R - RIB E KRR
2B BEBAZFARNRR M-

B b SRtz RN - AN SR B R R A
Hi R EBNREF A AEEZ2EE-

BiIE
BE-_TT\ER-FFLET A
S+-ALFEZAEHRMEEIERS
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10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuea)

11.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the Kingdom
of Cambodia, is required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries to the retirement benefit scheme as
stipulated by the relevant local authority. The employees
are entitled to the Company’s contributions subject to the
regulation of the local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are:

rE

Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
ARE TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEKEMEEH Current Mainland China corporate income tax

M ([REMERI)  (“CIT) 53,913 13,197
EERLIE (MsE27) Deferred taxation (note 27) 3,055 (19,549)
56,068 (6,352)
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REMSHERBEESE (—AANE
EITR)EAE AATNCEBERS
BEERTRBAS HeHS L &L
5 78 22 7 AR 2 )RS TS B
TN 55 UK 25 B 48 B R o AR A BT
ERGBER MENEBEE G
FE R BRI B B R16.5% (— BT L4
17.5% ) 2 B RGN BB FGR iR 2
EANEHHENE 2SN\ /2
NEBEELR WERRBE -
NE+=A=+—BI2EREBELE
CERBHE - ERAARNEBEFEE
CREBSBESA RS A EEELEY
ERBFE (ST LF &)

REZBREZESRMN 2 —N\NEE
BRAEEARDE (TBEREEARE]) &
IRBIBR R ¥ R RDAEMA 2 BIBR R %
NAEAERR2EMMEN  BREARK
BREEMPZRZBRNR - Bt R
BREABSEMAL 2B R RIKER
BERRAR ([KFE])BERK -

REVE RERBRIEFEMK Lz E
B Y8 2 7 ER M SR SRR IRO% I R B
PTSH . WK B AR FREERR
BMENR BN RBREMNREF=
EAeEEMNFRE - RARERL_TT
NFZFTEH -

RBEBEMALZZEMB AR HME
ZARRAR ([RMNEH]) RxZFE (&
BIREBRABIEZ16.5% (—FTFL
F17.5%) MEHEANBEBEEZE
FHIERR T AE SR IR o iy 1 A 9 B M
BHNKE (BE)REARARLER
EREEEMRERNANE WL ERE
BNEHRER (Z22LF &) -

NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

11. TAX (continued)

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law
which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to
be levied on profits or income or gain or appreciation shall
apply to the Company or its operations. As the Company
carries on business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong
Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The lower
Hong Kong tax rate is effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable profit arising
in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 December 2008.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Company has available tax losses brought forward from prior
years to offset the assessable profits generated during the year
(2007: Nil).

Pursuant to the International Business Companies Act, 1984
(“IBC Act”) of the British Virgin Islands, International Business
Companies incorporated pursuant to the IBC Act enjoy
a complete exemption from income tax. This includes an
exemption from capital gains tax, and all forms of withholding
tax. Accordingly, Top Always Investments Ltd. (“Top Always”),
a subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is not
subject to tax.

Shenzhou Cambodia, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in the Kingdom of Cambodia under the Law on Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 9% and is entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first four profit-making years.
Shenzhou Cambodia is in its third profitable year of operation.
It is entitled to be exempted from income tax in 2008.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”)
and Top Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to
the profits tax rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as Shenzhou Trading and Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2007: Nil).
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11. BB (&)

11. TAX (continued)

REARAMBEEMETOR ([FHEE
EBEND R-_ZTN\F—-A—RAEL
MoEGERRNBEARIIEREZBE
ISR ER—R25% -8B —TT/\F
—B—BE AEEREMNCEMESHR
EROETE TSI R25% 5 & 5% F A7)
REIRZ ERVAGT IR B R EAE
BETHEMBARRKIN ZEFRFE
HEEEMNFER EH%BRMMET
B R BER = F 58 A R R
FZBE-RAREERRERER_ZET
NEZFT-_FHBEIH-

BEMX AR FARABE-TEN
FR-FFLET A=+ —HILRH
FEZEEANGELHEMT

The Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “New CIT Law”) was effective from 1 January 2008,
which unifies the corporate income tax rate for domestic and
foreign enterprises at 25%. From 1 January 2008, the PRC
enterprise income tax is provided based on the statutory
income tax rate of 25% of the assessable income of each of
these companies for the period as determined in accordance
with the New CIT Law except for certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, which are exempted from the PRC income tax for
two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed
by a 50% reduction in the applicable tax rate for the next three
years. The tax holidays and concessions will expire between
2009 and 2012.

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as
follows:

rEHE
Group
—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 75t B 7 Profit before tax 757,420 401,736
LAE FE FE #E25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
—EELF:33%) (2007: 33%)
AEZHIE 189,355 132,573
FFE A& 10 gt 77 B FT Lower tax rate for specific provinces or
T2 WK TR enacted by local authority (134,327) (139,697)
TR H = W Expenses not deductible for tax 1,221 772
B2 IEEE Tax losses not recognised 719 -
56,968 (6,352)
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12. B RAEIREFEAELTE

HE-_ZZN\E+_A=1+—HIEE
ZERRIREREARLGEENESE
I AR #327,811,000L (=22 +
£ AR¥56,343,0007T) ' DA R A
B mKRNEIRE -

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2008 includes a profit
of RMB327,811,000 (2007: RMB56,343,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. R E 13. DIVIDENDS
b /N
Company
—EE)N\HF —EETLF
2008 2007
AR T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥R R B B AR Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20
I PK0.207%8 7T (approximately RMBO0.18) (2007: HK$0.16)
(HWAR®0.187T) per ordinary share
(ZEZEF:016%8T) 219,593 186,531

REF 2 BRI S AR AR BIR
P JE A RABF K& #tf o

BRAEERRESEAREMA
BREF

14.

SREARFNEEATEBRBIES
BB EERBR A TN ET SR
B2 BTG E -

118

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year.
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14. BAREERREFEE AR  14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRERN #) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
ARFTEEREARNRBERF 2 WA R The following reflects the income and share data used in the
B ERRERNT : basic and diluted earnings per share calculations:
TEE
Group
—EENE —ZERAF
2008 2007
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
&R Earnings

BREEEBRBRESE A Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

& {5 F1 of the parent 699,380 406,882
g 4E|
Number of Shares

—EENF —EEEF

2008 2007

T TR

Thousands Thousands

B 12 Shares

AN EFREARRFZ  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

T AR ke T B used in the basic earnings per share
calculation 1,245,000 1,245,000
RRITEAE SR 7 TR IR Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
25 GREERF - dilutive ordinary shares.
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15. X -BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
¥
Group
BER HBRR
BF e RE EEXE EREIRE st
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles fixtures in progress Total

ARBTR AR®TT AREBTR ARMTR ARETR ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

“EEN\FE+-A=1+—-H 31 December 2008

W-ZZ+E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 and

k=ZEZ\F—-HF—H: at 1 January 2008:
PR Cost 744,734 1,679,068 28,530 65,459 110,890 2,628,681
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (66,375) (542,925) (13,150) (32,249) - (654,699)
BEFE Net carrying amount 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
RZEENE—F—H" At 1 January 2008, net of
EHRZANERAE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
RE Additions 133,036 86,302 11,529 6,446 278,299 515,612
HE Disposals - (2,235) (485) (77) - (2,797)
FRRERE Impairment provided during the year - (4,026) - - - (4,026)
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year (41,357)  (152,928) (4,650) (8,033) - (206,968)
ey Transfers 217,570 2,228 - - (219,798) -
S Exchange realignment (691) (1,370) (47) (15) - (2,123)
RZBENE At 31 December 2008, net of
+-A=f+-8" accumulated depreciation
EMREMTERAE and impairment 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
RZZENE At 31 December 2008:
+ZA=+—-8:
B Cost 1,004574 1,754,003 37,762 71,08 169,391 3,126,828
ZATERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (107,657) (689,889) (16,035) (39,567) - (853,148)
EmFE Net carrying amount 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
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15. ¥ -BERZE (2 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
PN 3
Group
BER iR
BF HE A BERE  ERIR @it
Furniture
Plant and Motor and  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total

AEBTL  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETX
RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“EELFE+-A=+—H 31 December 2007

RZZEERF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2006 and

kZZE+5-A-8: at 1 January 2007:
KA Cost 566,129 1,380,390 23,136 52,148 103,609 2,125,412
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (87,764)  (412,000) (10,773) (26,844) - (487,381)
RHEFE Net carrying amount 528,365 968,390 12,363 25,304 103,609 1,638,031
RZZT+5¥-A-8" At 1 January 2007, net of
EMRRHTERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 528,365 968,390 12,363 25,304 103,609 1,638,031
NE Additions 19,137 306,459 6,700 14,447 167,707 514,450
HE Disposals - (1,821) (129) (116) - (2,066)
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year (28,660)  (135,464) (3,502) (6,408) - (174,034)
B Transfers 160,426 - - - (160,426) -
A% Exchange realignment (909) (1,421) (52) 17 - (2,399)
i At 31 December 2007, net of
+-A=+—-8”" accumulated depreciation
BHA R TE A and impairment 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
i S At 31 December 2007:
+-ZA=+-8:
KA Cost 744,734 1,679,068 28,530 65,459 110,890 2,628,681
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (66,375)  (542,925) (13,150) (32,249) - (654,699)
REFE Net carrying amount 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
RZEENF+_A=+—H8 K& At 31 December 2008, certain buildings of the Group with
BRHEFEL B ARM156,220,0007T a net book value of approximately RMB156,220,000 (2007:
(ZZEZE+F:169,350,000) 7 H T 12 RMB169,350,000) were pledged to secure general banking
FEER UERETAEE 2 —MKIR facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

TREE (MI5E26) °
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ZIERN T AR S I8 - AREE D T4
T

NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

16. LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease
payments under operating leases and their carrying amounts
are analysed as follows:

RKE
Group
—ZEENEF —EELEF
2008 2007
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IDPNE Cost;
n—H—H As at 1 January 156,785 135,185
NE Additions 56,678 21,600
WE—RWE QA Acquisition of a subsidiary = -
R+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 213,463 156,785
RErs iﬁ Accumulated amortisation:
W—H— As at 1 January 4,792 2,811
Egﬁéﬁ Provided for the year 2,677 1,981
Rt+-—A=+—H As at 31 December 7,469 4,792
BREFE: Net book value:
R+—ZA=+—H As at 31 December 205,994 151,993
n—H—H As at 1 January 151,993 132,374

REE 2 1 i (E AR BIREE I
AR IR E FRRTE

RZEENF+ZA=+—H £A5£H
SREFELN A ARYK23,673,000T (=
TELEF E) 2 ETLEREC KT
EARTAERZ —RRITEEZER
(FfzE26) °

The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China
and are held under medium lease terms.

At 31 December 2008, certain land use rights of the Group
with a net book value of approximately RMB23,673,000 (2007:
Nil) were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 26).
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rEE
Group
FAKEE"
LI gL Water Mt
Software Use Right* Total
ARB TR ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EENE 31 December 2008
+=ZRA=+-H
B Cost:
RZEENF—-H—H As at 1 January 2008 552 - 552
NE Additions 2,088 79,000 81,088
ERBEMNRENSE Reclassification from a long-term
payment - 50,000 50,000
R-ZEENE As at 31 December 2008
+=ZA=+-—H 2,640 129,000 131,640
REEH Accumulated amortisation:
RZZEZNF—HA—H As at 1 January 2008 31 - 31
FERE Provided for the year 179 3,762 3,941
R-ZZEENF As at 31 December 2008
+=A=+-—H 210 3,762 3,972
FEFE: Net book value:
R-ZZEENEF As at 31 December 2008
+=ZBA=+-—H 2,430 125,238 127,668
RZZEZNF—HA—H As at 1 January 2008 521 - 521
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7. BIEEE (&) 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
RE
Group
B/t FA KA @Et
Water
Software Use Right* Total
ARETIT ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ETLF 31 December 2007
+-A=+—H
A Cost:
RZEZE+F—A—H As at 1 January 2007 - - -
NE Additions 552 - 552
WE—RME AT Acquisition of a subsidiary - - -
RZZEZTLF As at 31 December 2007

+-A=+—H 552 - 552
/\‘Eﬂﬁfﬁ : Accumulated amortisation:

—EE+F—-H—H As at 1 January 2007 - - -
iEﬁéﬁ Provided for the year 31 - 31
RZEELF As at 31 December 2007

+-—A=+—H 31 - 31
REEE: Net book value:

RNZZETLF As at 31 December 2007
+-A=+—"H 521 - 521

RZEZ+F—HA—H As at 1 January 2007 - - _

* 1B HE AN & B 8 5% it w B BT R * Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
ZEERNFHALZBEARR Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
SBE -BFWREAKFNBEERM three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
BRKBRBIEI L2 =HHE TS Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
AEBERZEREMBAZ G AR Supply General Company, the Group has agreed to pay the local
129,000,000t M RFBEUNEE B government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange for a
BREBKERMEE  BH20F ([AK guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable price for a
#]) BEZTTNF+_A=1+— period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31 December 2008,
A A&EEE X ARS51,000,000 the Group has paid RMB51,000,000 (2007: RMB50,000,000),
T(ZZTZT L5 AR®50,000,000 and the remaining RMB78,000,000 was recorded as other
JT) M T~ AR#78,000,0007CE 72 payable.

85 E b R FRIE
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18. RIB AR ZBRERKTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

RNAIZE R LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(a) RHMBARIZERE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
AT
Company
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETRRS LA Unlisted shares, at cost 638,712 727,454

FEMBARZFBHOT:
HMRItER

% EAEBZER
Place of

incorporation and

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REBDL
ERITRE E# Mg FEERRCEHE
Percentage of
equity attributable to  Principal
Issued the Company activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect place of operations
XZ REBRAES - 30,002% 1 100% - REZR
BABEEDH
Top Always British Virgin Islands, US$30,002 Investment holding
limited liability
company
ERPMHBERRE  PEKAE. 116,000,000% 7T - 100%  RPBERERER
(TERMsta]) NEBERE HEHBREER
Ningbo Shenzhou Mainland China, US$116,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Knitting Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign- knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) owned enterprise Mainland China
B RS 5 07T REIARE 2,100,000% ¢ - 100%  RPBEREDSRK
BRRA NEBERE HEHBREER
([t S5 )

Ningbo Shixing Knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd.
(“Shixing Printing”)

Mainland China,
wholly-foreign-
owned enterprise

US$2,100,000

Print and sale of
knitwear products in
Mainland China
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NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

DRIZER (&)
RMBARZRE (&)
HMRItER
Ex EAEBZER
Place of

incorporation and

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

ERTRA

Issued

REBDH
E# k3
Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company

TEXBRELHE

Principal
activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BERLLNEERRF  PEAKE- 140,000% 7T - 100%  RAPBEREDRE
([44807%]) NEBERE HEHBREER
Ningbo Lele Printing Co., Mainland China, US$140,000 Print and sale of
Ltd. (“Lele Printing”) wholly-foreign- knitwear products in
owned enterprise Mainland China
ERBRREBRAA  HEAE. 10,000,000 7T - 91%  RPEAERER
([RmEE]) hOhRBRE HEHBREER
Ningbo Yongmian Mainland China, US$10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fashion Garment foreign equity joint knitwear products in
Co., Ltd. (“Yongmian venture Mainland China
Fashion”)

ERAEBEBERRA  PEKAE. 5,000,000% 7 - 9%  RMPERESER
([HRgREE]) RN EDE HEHBREER
Ningbo Shendie Mainland China, US$5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fashion Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint knitwear products in

(“Shendie Fashion”) venture Mainland China
Y EREES RERTH- 30,000,000% 7T - 100% RREREER
NEBELR HEHBREER
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia,  US$30,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign- knitwear products in
owned enterprise Cambodia
ERATHBRERAR PEKAE. 50,000,000 T - 100%  RPBERERER
(TRFHE]) NEBELR HEHBREER
Ningbo Dagian Knitting ~ Mainland China, US$50,000,000 Manufacture and sale of

Co., Ltd. (“Dagian
Knitting”)

wholly-foreign-
owned enterprise

knitwear products in
Mainland China
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18. RMIBARZBRERMFHE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
PNAZER (&) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
(a RMBLARIZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
E AR 3Lt B BREBDL
£ EABEZER BRITRE B B FEERRECEHE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERMMHBERRE  PEKAE. 1,050,000% 7T - 100% R BEAERE
([HmRsti]) NEBERE MIﬁﬁﬁﬁém
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Mainland China, US$1,050,000 Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Linlin wholly-foreign- of knitwear products in
Knitting”) owned enterprise Mainland China
ERERRHERAT  PEAE. 4,000,000% 7T - 100% R BEAERE
([E=RER]) NEBERE MIﬁﬁ%§§m
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Mainland China, US$4,000,000 Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo wholly-foreign- of knitwear products in
Tuteng”) owned enterprise Mainland China
M (2R BRAR REAR. 10,000,000 7T - 9%  RPEAERE
([EMstEe®]) hhaBRE MIﬁﬁ%%Em
Shenzhou Knitting Mainland China foreign  US$10,000,000 Manufacture and processing
(Anhui) Co., Ltd. equity joint venture of knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) Mainland China
BNRBHBERRE  PEKE. 8,000,000% 7T - 100% R BEAERE
([EMRE]) NEBERE MIﬁﬁ%%Em
Quzhou Feiyao Textile Mainland China wholly-  US$8,000,000 Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Quzhou foreign-owned of knitwear products in
Feiyao”) enterprise Mainland China
HESERHERRA #Iﬁﬁ\ AR - 100% RPBEAREZEHLE
([%8]) BELEAR 2,000,000t
Shanghai Maxwin Mainland China sole RMB2,000,000 Trading company in Mainland
Garments Co., Ltd. proprietorship China
(“Maxwin”) Company
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18. RIB AR ZBRERKTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

PNAZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
(a RMBLAREIZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
MR E R BREBDH
£ EABEZER ERITRE E# B FEERRECEHE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
AT#LEA LGN AR - 100%  RPEAREE LA #EM
BREERA 1,500,0007T
Dagian Import & Export ~ Mainland China, limited ~ RMB1,500,000 Import and export of
liability Company commaodities in Mainland
China
BNE S BB BREART 1007 7T - 100% RERELOB®
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, limited HK$100 Import and export of
liability company commodities in Hong
Kong
XE(BB)RE B BREARF 1007 7T - 100%  H®EEK
AR AF
Top Always (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong, limited HK$100 Investment holding

Investments Limited

liability company
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(b)

ERINTEERREAFERER
REBRTZERAXNANEEEEF
BERBDZARAMBAF-

BTHEBARZER
RZEBEENF+ZA=+—8" %
THEBARZMABRRY BER
B REETERPNEALE
R RER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group.

Loans to subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2008, all loans to subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.
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78 19. INVENTORIES
KEE
Group
—ZEENF —EEEF
2008 2007
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 134,342 128,165
ER S Work in progress 320,805 308,659
BIRK G Finished goods 277,279 258,685
732,426 695,509
FE UK BR FX 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
i3 | ARF
Group Company
—EEN\FE C—TTLFE “EENE C—ETLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARETRE AR%Tr AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JE IR 3 Trade receivables 487,038 325,771 78,214 -
RE Impairment - - = -
487,038 325,771 78,214 -
KEBAIEDHEEAEHAFET - Hi Majority of the Group’s sales are covered by letter of credit.
RE-—MWHE—E~NEAZEER- The remaining amounts are generally granted with credit terms

of one to six months.
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20. EWAR (&) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuead)
REEB  REBZEHBGTE 2 BUER An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance
HERER DA T - sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
r5H b
Group Company
“EEN\E —ETtF ZBENF C—TTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTT ARETT AR¥TR AR®Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
618 A M Within 6 months 484,280 324,294 78,214 -
618 A I Over 6 months 2,758 1,477 - -
487,038 325,771 78,214 -
I TR AR E 2 FE R F R B 5 AT 18 The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
™ considered to be impaired is as follows:
N b
Group Company
“EENE C—ETtF  ZBENFE C—TTtE
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTR ARWTT AR®TR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

WA B E SR E Neither past due nor impaired 471,802 320,590 78,214 -
AEMPR={EA Less than 3 months past due 12,478 3,704 - -
BEH=-EANLE Over 3 months past due 2,758 1,477 - -
487,038 325,771 78,214 -
A A< 380 HA SR (B 2 JE YR IE B 2R P 4 Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
BN SRS BB the customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuead)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

At 31 December 2008, the trade receivables were denominated
in the following currencies:

33
Group
“2BNE —TTHE
2008 2007
FE%®  AR®SH RE®  ARESE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
FTr AR%TRn Tr  ARETR
in '000 RMB’000 in 000 RMB’000
e Us$ 53,074 362,739 33,424 244,146
AR RMB 124,299 124,299 81,625 81,625
487,038 325,771
NN
Company
“ZENF i s
2008 2007
F&%  ARBEHE RE®  AREEE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Trn ARETx Tr ARETRT
in ‘000 RMB’000 in "000 RMB’000
e Us$ 11,444 78,214 - -

MR EmEREEQABERE-

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate to

their fair values.
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21. AR RE - REREMEWS 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

b | RECEIVABLES
x5E NN
Group Company
“EENE el o3 “ZENE ZTTtEE
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARETR AREBTT ARBTR ARETI
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

BRREREE Prepayments and deposits
-RERVE — Purchase of raw materials 59,914 42,745 = -
-BENORSE - Purchase of export quotas - 3,716 - -
-EAReRES - Prepaid rental and deposits 14,563 22,030 - -
—Hft - Others 649 743 - -
JEUE BRI VAT refund receivable 21,835 10,471 = -
FEU AR & Dividends receivable - - 463,041 365,898
H it e 30E Other receivables 20,330 19,565 88 93
117,291 99,270 463,129 365,991
Ll EESES B A ORE - L4 None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BETE & 5 & E B Bl R SRR 8% The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
ZERNRIBEHRE - receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
AR RRIE e R EMEREIE 2 RE The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
EEEQNABERSE- receivables approximate to their fair values.
2. e RBEESEEY 22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
biN-c) b
Group Company
—EZNE C—TTtHFE ZEBENF —TTtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARE®TT ARETT AR¥TR AR®ET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRFTHER Cash and bank balances 231,226 227,554 9,816 1,029
REER Short-term deposits 6,915 5,830 - 5,830
ReLREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 238,141 233,384 9,816 6,859
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23.

BERBREEEY (&)
NEEE AEEBUARE ([AR

DB Re RBITEBABARE
200,433,000t (ZEZT+F: AR
185,276,0007T) - AR A B ;A1
REMEE R BIERBEAH 2 5N
E B IED R 4E0E - SIE R EBER
AN EEREE B A LUETTE
HEBZETBEARBABRAEME
ﬁgo

RITFFIRBITZEEFRMNEAZEH
R BRERA B - 52 H 2 E M fF A — R
EZAAAEZIRHARFE VIR
SEZARREFRME  LILERE
HIF A R REA B - RITEHREFA
ROVEBERCHZEBREFRT B
T RREEEMIREAERE QA ER
%o

ENERRREE
REH A RBHE DM E 2R
FREBERAITOT

22,

23.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately RMB200,433,000 (2007: RMB185,276,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

r5H b

Group Company
—EZNE —TT+F ZBENF —TTtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTT ARETT AR¥TR AR®ET:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
0Z61E A 0 to 6 months 283,888 305,844 2,219 -
R ERES 6 months to 1 year 2,398 3 - -
1EE26F 1 year 10 2 years 645 - - -
2F A F Over 2 years 38 40 - -
286,969 305,887 2,219 -

BNEAEREITE - BAERARE
BREEBEEAAEMRESE-

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.
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24, HWENRERESTRIE 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

X5 b
Group Company
“E2EN\E _—TTHF  ZBENF C_TTLHE
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARE®TT ARETT AR¥TR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ X Accrued expenses 139,671 95,749 = -
FE 1 KA (B EE17) Payable for Water Use Right
(note 17) 78,000 - - -
BENE BERREZ Payables for purchase of property,
e 3E plant and equipment 24,995 7,003 - -
ERRETIR RES Guarantee deposits related to
construction projects 20,613 1,226 - -
HEibEMHE Other taxes payable 12,349 9,525 - -
Hib B 308 Other payables 5,726 3,566 1,346 351
EFE&& Customer deposits 2,057 1,803 = -
B OEREZRE Dividends payable to minority
shareholders 587 1,087 - -
283,998 119,959 1,346 351

The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

H B A R IR N FEET FRIE Z BRI (B B E
RAEREE-

25. fTESRIA

“ZENF
2008
rEE PiN/NE|
Group Company
EE &% BE 2
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
AR¥TR AR¥TT AR¥ TR AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZHEEALY Forward currency contracts 96,780 12,960 = 12,960
—ZELF
2007
A&HE /NG|
Group Company
BE a8 BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETT AR%®Tr ARBETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEREN Forward currency contracts 286,617 161,754 - 161,754

EMEBANZEREEREAARER
|§JO
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The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values.
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BEHENSHN-RERBEW
R-ZBZBENF+ZA=+—H F&HE
KEETERERSLN EERERY
RRRBIEPHEZHMRE -

REBERBHAZHEEARERES
BEMEHZFH - AEBEFHH -
NEFEHBREEEBRSRE 2EHH
BHE RET»ER LEBEERFE
AR #114,269,0007c (ZFEZEEF : g
@ AR¥195,951,0007T ) 2 R 515 et
AN
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continueq)

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2008, the Group held certain forward currency
contracts designated as hedges in respect of expected future
sales to overseas customers.

The terms of the forward currency contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the expected future sales.
The cash flow hedges relating to expected future sales in the
year 2009 were assessed to be highly effective and net losses
of RMB114,269,000 (2007: gains of RMB195,951,000) were
included in the hedging reserve as follows:

—EENE ZERLF
2008 2007
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFAE PR Total fair value gains included in
N EW =B the hedging reserve 1,703 239,875
AR BERGZEERE Deferred tax on fair value gains 704 (28,107)
RAEREFERER Amount released to set off the impact
HHIEB R E S of hedged items that affected the
income statement (128,215) (16,583)
BIER B RIE 2 IEEFIE Deferred tax on amounts released
to profit 11,539 766
RenEEHH 2 Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges
(B#E) M FE (114,269) 195,951

FHONAEBEEISERHEEKS
B UBEBETHEE RS IEGRGZ
EXRR -FELHFAEENTETAEZ AR
B3 Bk A R #16,620,000T (=&
T+ FE ARK104,073,0007T) ¢
BEtALRFEERER-

In addition, the Group has entered into various forward
currency contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting
to a gain of RMB16,620,000 were charged to the income
statement during the year (2007: loss of RMB104,073,000).
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26. SFERITBEERAEMBEER

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
b3
Group
—EENE S 3
2008 2007
BERAE(E) H®A AR¥TR ERAZ(E) i ARBTL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ik Current
BROTER-BER Bank loans - unsecured 4.38-558 —EINE 622,386 5488217 —ZTN\E 362,000
2009 2008
ROET-BER Bank loans - unsecured RARTRE REBITRE
FER41.00-400 —BEhE FE%4085-150 —TENE
Libor+1.00-4.00 2009 119,606 Libor+0.85-1.50 2008 378,013
RERTENZ Current portion of
BEHH-FEMR long term bank loans - secured BB TRE
FEE4.00 Z—FERE
Libor+1.00 2009 24,605 -
766,597 740,013
FRE Non-current
HiBEERTEFN  Other secured bank loans RALTEE —F-BEEZ REETAE —TENEZR
FER4.00 ZB--F FEXH0 ZZ-%F
Libor+1.00 2010-2012 64,245 Libor+1.00 2009-2010 58,437
830,842 798,450
NG|
Company
—EENE ZETLE
2008 2007
ERNE(E) ZHA AR®ETR ERA=(E) 31#A AREBFL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’'000
ik Current
ROER-BHAE Bank loans - unsecured 438% Z—EEAE 49,386 - - -
2009
ROER-BER Bank loans - unsecured RABTRE
FEZ4.00 —BBhE 102,520 . i i
Libor+1.00 2009
151,906 -
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26. FFERITEERHEMEER 26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
(%) BORROWINGS (continuea)
PN E b NG|
Group Company
“EENE _TTLF “EEN\E C—EEtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARETRE AR%®Tr AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mnhk: Analysed into:
ARTIHIHREEEZ Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
RITERRES
TENHRER Within one year or on demand 766,597 740,013 151,906 -
Epkid In the second year 9,568 27,896 =
EIEFESF (BEEEMT)  Inthe third to fifth years, inclusive 54,677 30,541 - -
830,842 798,450 151,906 -
(@) AEBNFLHBZRIEDMESER (a) The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities
BT at year end:
b ARF
Group Company
“$E\E —TILF  —ENE —TItF
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ZEM & Floating rate 2,417,161 1,384,947 1,503,435 -

by "EEBETFTRITEEUNRE (b) Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured
ZEFIERBEMR ARG by mortgages over the Group's buildings, which had
SEACEEBRENRARE an aggregate carrying value at the balance sheet
179,893,0007L (ZEZT L F: A date of approximately RMB179,893,000 (2007:
R#169,350,0007T) (HzE15) o RMB169,350,000) (note 15).

c BKETHERLEARE (c) Except for certain current bank borrowings with
573,000,0007T (ZZEZE L F: A an aggregate amount of RMB573,000,000 (2007:
[ #362,000,0007T) 2 RITIEE RMB362,000,000) which are denominated in RMB, the
AARBEHEIN IBEENET borrowings are in United States dollars and Hong Kong
KB TTETE dollars.
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27. IEEMIE 27. DEFERRED TAX
fEB A AR ITREF A5 B BRFL 18 & = Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
BHIEaEEE BREEMEH IR is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
B — B B4R 2 15T - R AT R E AT current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
FHEENBEBERAENE- to the same fiscal authority.
AEHE b
Group Company
—EZNg —TT+FE ZBENF —TTtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARE®TT ARETT AR¥TR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REHBEEE Deferred tax assets 17,203 27,680 12,233 26,689
ERBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (15,098) (34,763) - -
EICHIBEE,/ (BfE)F%E Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 2,105 (7,083) 12,233 26,689
REEBGBERREHAT Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:
r5E NG|
Group Company
—EENE —TT+F ZBENF —TTtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTT ARETT AR¥TR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEHBEEE Deferred tax assets 12,233 26,689 12,233 26,689
BEEHERE Deferred tax liabilities (10,128) (33,772) - -
ERFEEE,/ (BE)F%E Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 2,105 (7,083) 12,233 26,689
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27. IEERIE (&)
ERFAERER 2 @esmT

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax accounts are

as follows:
N NG
Group Company
“EEN\E —ETt+F ZBENF C—TTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTT ARETT AR¥TR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
F4) At beginning of year (7,083) 709 26,689 -
A/ (k) AFEREZER  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
ZEIERIE (M) the income statement during
the year (note 11) (3,055) 19,549 (14,456) 26,689
WAEEEZRF A/ (%)  Deferred tax credited/(debited) to
ZETERIA equity during the year 12,243 (27,341) - -
FIR At end of year 2,105 (7,083) 12,233 26,689

EXEHMAEERBERFAZES CK
At MR RS PR R N 2 & ER)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

LU balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
(a) EBELEFSHREE (a) Deferred income tax assets
*58
Group
TAR
BEHBRER
RABZESR HE B Hit #st
Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits  Impairment Provisions Others Total
AEETT ARETT ARETT N NS
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
RZEZ+E-A-H At 1 January 2007 - 482 414 25 921
RAEERERFAN/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(1B%) 2 BREFIE the income statement during the year 26,689 44 51 (25) 26,759
RZZZtF At 31 December 2007
+ZA=+—H 26,689 526 465 - 27,680
RAFEBRERAAN/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(1) 2 BREFIE the income statement during the year (14,456) 683 3,296 - (10,477)
RZZENE At 31 December 2008
+ZBA=+-H 12,233 1,209 3,761 - 17,203
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27. EEERIIE (#) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(a) EZEFEHREE (&) (a) Deferred income tax assets (continued)

¥ NN
Company
AHARKEAE
ERBFAEZER
Loss available
for offsetting against
future taxable profits
ARBET T
RMB’000
RZZEZE+LF—H—H At 1 January 2007 -

FFARFEEGRR ZIELERIE Deferred tax credited to the income
statement during the year 26,689

RIZEZEL+F+_F=+—HIE Gross deferred tax assets at

ERIEE EBE 31 December 2007 26,689

RAFERBZENBZ Deferred tax charged to the income
IRAE B IE statement during the year (14,456)

RZZEZENF+_A=+—HE Gross deferred tax assets at

EWRIEEEEE 31 December 2008 12,233
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27. BEBH (#) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) EEZEFEHERE (b) Deferred income tax liabilities
rEE
Group
BeRE FEHEY
¥ E TETIR wEt
Non-hedging
Cash flow currency
hedges derivatives Total
AR¥T R AR¥BTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZZE+F—-—H—H At 1 January 2007 - 212 212
HGBRFEERER Y Deferred tax charged to the income
EETIE statement during the year - 7,210 7,210
REFERRNR 2 Deferred tax debited to equity
EETIE during the year 27,341 - 27,341
RZEETL At 31 December 2007
+=-A=+—H 27,341 7,422 34,763
REFERERTAZ Deferred tax credited to equity
EETIE during the year (12,243) - (12,243)
REAFEEZRITAZ Deferred tax credited to the income
FEERIE statement during the year - (7,422) (7,422)
R-ZBNE At 31 December 2008
+=-RA=+-H 15,098 - 15,098

R-ZEENF+_A=+—8 #EH
REBMPRFEKS 2K ERRAERRTE
B2 REE L B F) 2 T8I0 w7 RIE T
RE-ZEZ2RA ZEMNEBERRARAR
R IERZEBAZAREET KR
T NEFE+-_A=+—8B BFEARE
MEARIEERTEAECRE 2B
B EBERE L A ARM594,404,0007T

ZETLEF M) o

At 31 December 2008, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which

deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalling
approximately RMB594,404,000 at 31 December 2008 (2007:

Nil).
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28. IR 28. SHARE CAPITAL
%) —EENE “ETLF
Shares 2008 2007
BETT AR¥TR BETT ARETR
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
ETE Authorised:
3,000,000,000( ZZ2Z+4%:  3,000,000,000 (2007:
3,000,000,000) & & 3,000,000,000) ordinary
AE0A0B Tz T B shares of HK$0.10 each 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,245,000,000 ZZZ+%:  1,245,000,000 (2007:
1,245,000,000) & ik 1,245,000,000) ordinary
EECA0E T 2 E Bk shares of HK$0.10 each 124,500 129,717 124,500 129,717
29. {#1E 29. RESERVES
(a) *&%E (a) Group

142

(i) ZEBBLAEE ([ZEEE
rEZ])
RiR B R RDE R B AR
MEBLARzABERZMAEA
& B R RE I B A RIZA IR
RPBEAREHRAUNEE
BIEFE10% A ZETE &R
pAEe BEERBEAES
2 B o B K e B /B8 B RE AR
P AR Z250% 4% LE ° B8 0 0E TE
A ntEE A BRIE SR
BB AR Z RS
BOREMBRA 225% °

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73

of the financial statements.

()

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland China
Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are
each required to allocate 10% of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
generally accepted accounting principles, to the
SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part
of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-
up capital, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalization is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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29, f#fE (&) 29. RESERVES (continueq)
(a) XA&EBE (&) (a) Group (continued)
(i) ELZFEGFE (i) Exchange fluctuation reserve
PE 5K B i R ERC 8 B R The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
HENKB AR ZFBIRE exchange differences arising from the translation of
EEZIEHZERE- the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.
(b) &2AF (b) Company
ERKD
M ROEEE  RARR #E  RERA BRRERE @
Share Exchange Proposed
premium Capital  fluctuation Retained final
Note account surplus reserve profits dividend Total

ARETR ARMTR ARETT AR¥ETR AR%TT ARET:R
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB’000

TS +FE-F—HZEH  Balance at 1 January 2007 762,499 727,430 (41,712) 197,206 187,628 1,833,051
ERAE Exchange realignment - - (83,382) - - (83,382)
EEAE Profit for the year - - - 56,343 - 56,343
RAFEARRAREZBRE Dividends paid to the
Company's shareholders - - - - (187,628)  (187,628)
“ETHFRERSRE  Proposed final 2007 dividend 13 - - - (186,531) 186,531 -
RZESLE At 31 December 2007
+-A=+-H 762,499 727,430 (125,094) 67,018 186,531 1,618,384
EHBAE Exchange realignment - - (150,951) - - (150,951)
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 327,811 - 327,811
DBEINGE SV & Dividends paid to the
Company's shareholders - - - - (186,531) (186,531)
ZET\FRERBRE  Proposed final 2008 dividend 13 - - - (219593 219,593 -
RZBENE At 31 December 2008
+ZA=+-H 762,499 727,430 (276,045) 175,236 219,593 1,608,713
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30. ZERE S Z2EMIA 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REER TRENSR T A REE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
N instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
MKEE Financial assets

r5E
Group
“EENE g 3
2008 2007
RAAE BRRARE
FTABEZ ERR STABRZ BERR
BHEE e @t HHEE el sE &t
Financial Financial
assets assets
at fair value at fair value
through  Loans and through Loans and
profitorloss  receivables Total  profit orloss  receivables Total

ARBTRT ARMTR AREBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

IR Trade receivables - 487,038 487,038 - 325,771 325,771

fTHESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - 63,325 - 63,325

BHEAR Pledged deposits - - - - 184 184
MeEFER =8 2HTER  Bank deposits with initial term of

over three months - 30,000 30,000 - 60,000 60,000

LeRBRLEEN Cash and cash equivalents - 238,141 238,141 - 233,384 233,384

- 755,179 755,179 63,325 619,339 682,664

144



Annual Report 08 4 %

i 2= B
Notes to Financial Statements

—EENF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2008

30. ZEREI D z2EmI A (£  30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continueq)
HMEEaE Financial liabilities
F5@
Group
ZEENE 3 2
2008 2007
REHEHE i 3
BIFEEZ tEZ RIEEEZ itEZ
HHEE HHEE ast BHak FI%EE &5t
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities  liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for ~ amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total

ARBTRE AR%TR AREBTRT ARETT ARETR ARETI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEREZREE Trade and bills payables - 286,969 286,969 - 305,887 305,887
JEREEA LA Due to related parties - 1,368 1,368 - 1,009 1,009
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 12,960 - 12,960 161,754 - 161,754
SRRTEERAMESR Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings - 766,597 766,597 - 740,013 740,013
H i e R Other payables - 131,978 131,978 - 21,181 21,181

12,960 1,186,912 1,199,872 161,754 1,068,090 1,229,844

3. ¥HEREREERERBE 31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

BETET AR AEB ST AETE The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
?Efﬁﬁ%*ﬂ(&ﬁ%%&ﬁiﬁf%ﬁéi derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short term
R TEFEEEAREEEEES deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
Ffrﬁ'% B AEBENBHEMEBEEEN raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
BE PINEEEREEE CRBIBERKL other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
FERTEREK © and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
REBNMETUTETAEXR S FTEBHE The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
EHEESY - BNATERERLE principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
EEzEBER- manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.
AREEGMIAELE T BARAFIEX The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
Bk INERR - - EERRERABES are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
EFeENEHBTHRERUNER L liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
MR IERER BEBEN T X &K managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
EEBEBITETAEZ ST BERE N5 The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
wEMIFF2.4 - set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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MEEREEBEERBEE
(4)

SN
AEEFAHTSHEEDRAREEH
AEETERMEBAN-

TRINREMBEMERTE 2150
T &I R 2 B A S BB AT B &
REBERE ZHEREIHN -

NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s
equity.

FEE
Group
BAH Bt A1 F i
tH /TR #mORL) B ORD)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
decrease in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity

% AR¥TR AR¥TR
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—EENE 2008
A= If interest rate increases +5 (2,571) 2,571)
WHETH If interest rate decreases -5 2571 2,571
—E2tF 2007
A = 3 If interest rate increases +5 (1,714) (1,714)
W F =T If interest rate decreases -5 1,714 1,714

SMEE L B
AEEEHRZZFEERR % FE R IK
BIREERSARB ZKEEMIATT
ETZHE - AEEN81% (ZFT L
F:89% ) IHENXRTTAHE  LAZFL
LEUET ARBERTIBELEEN
BRERERSH OEREHRKE
EmEZINER K

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales denominated in US$ by operating
units of which the functional currency is RMB. Approximately
81% (2007: 89%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in US$
and undertaken by these operating units. The Group requires
the major operating unit to use forward currency contracts to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures on the forecast future
sales.
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MERREERRERBGR
(#)

REER (4)

AR B 2 BOR AR ER 2 #9R
BEEEAITE T AZ F 8 WESRA
% &

R_ZEENF+_A=+—0 X£H
8 B18273,500,000% 7T (—EZE +
% :490,000,000E L) v BHE K A
W BT REESEBRAEIINEPIHE
ZH AR

TRINREMBEMERTE 2150
T AENEERAREEPHHAEEN
RIMBEZHERESIN (BREBREER
BEZARENRE) -

NEFE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2008, the Group held forward currency
contracts of US$273,500,000 (2007: US$490,000,000)
designated as hedges in respect of expected future sales to
overseas customers.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

IhEE = B AT
LA T bz
Increase/
decrease in Effect
foreign on profit
currency rate before tax
% ARBTT
% RMB’000
—EENF 2008
MAR¥EHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (102,276)
MARBHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 102,276
—EELF 2007
i AR A ETTHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (67,558)
M ARB R ETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 67,558
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MHERBEREERERBE
(#&)

FERRE
AEBERNAREERFZF=TE
TRH-BAKEZBER  FiAREE
EMETRGZEP LEAKBEERZ
BiEF I AEBFEERBUHK
Rigs BASEERS ZERRRT A
BER-HRAFFNEBEELEM 2B
B EZRS BIFREEZHEE
BRRME BAAEETGRTEER
Hio

ERAEBEMPBEE (BERE
KIGEIF R Bt RUGRIBEIA RIE A A
Bt ARG BEE) ELXZEER
B AKEEEZEERBEERSY
TR FR - P &= AR E F 0 %
FTAZEK@E

HRASEEENZREERTFZES
TEARS FtBARRMR - EEE
BRETREEREF /RXSHFTEE-A
SEYESAEREERAR-

ERAEEREBEER 2 EERR
#—FEBE PP RKME20H

%o

i

RBESER
AEBBEBBRRADESHE TAET
EeNpRAR - EHEIAEEESRT
ANMBEE (HImEKIERNR) 22 5
BAREEXBG2AARERE -

NE+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2008

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group, which comprise cash and short term
deposits, other receivables and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the

balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted

D payments, was as follows:
*5@
Group
“EENE
2008
6BAZ
RER  SRefER  HRM2MEA 1228 2N E @t
6 to
Less than less than 1to2 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETR AR%Tr AR%Tn ARETR AR¥Tn AR%T:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FERRTEERAMESR Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 503,244 263,353 9,568 54,677 830,842
ENERRER Trade and bills payables - 283,888 2,398 645 38 286,969
HiEHHE Other payables 131,978 - - - - 131,978
fTESRMIE Derivative financial instruments 12,960 - - - - 12,960
144,938 787,132 265,751 10,213 54,715 1,262,749
T5E
Group
3 3
2007
6lAAZ
RER  SR6EA SR12(ER 1208 2F L £ &t
610
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT ARETr ARETr  ARETR ARBTT  ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
FERTEEREMESR Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 579,350 160,663 27,896 30,541 798,450
ERERREE Trade and bills payables - 305,844 3 - 40 305,887
EitERFIE Other payables 21,181 - - - - 21,181
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 161,754 - - - - 161,754
182,935 885,194 160,666 27,896 30,581 1,287,272
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31. EREEBERBXK 31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBESER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
RRA
Company
ZBENF
2008
GELES
RERX  OReA  DR2EA 122% 2FNE st
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HERTRERAMES Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 151,906 - - - 151,906
ERERREE Trade and bills payables - 2,219 - - - 2,219
fTE4RMIE Derivative financial instruments 12,960 - - - - 12,960
12,960 154,125 - - - 167,085
NG
Company
ZTRLE
2007
6EAZ
RER SR6EAR PR12(EA 1506 2EP &t
6to
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments 161,754 - - - - 161,754
EXEE Capital management
REEEARERE 7 T EHEZEREER The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
EERBECE RN RERRITERL safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
R PUITREEBRRAREFRHAE and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
Bo business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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EXREE(F)
AEERBEBEANESHEIENHE
HEANRE BB ABEANRE
REEHE A BE B M IR RIR A 2 BB [
BRBEEEALBTHR -BE_TT
NEFEF+_A=+—BRZ_ZFZTLF+=
A=t—BULFE BHEEEEANA
B BRAEFLEZS -

=N B

AEERAEABEL X (ANEBEFE
BREARBENERFE) BELERN - EH
FHEAEBRITRAMEE EHE
%\&E—Hf‘Ei\{”@ﬁﬁ*”ﬁ&ﬁ?r*”@%
MEMBAEATRE BRe MRS
BY EXBER Tﬂﬂg%fﬁ_/\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
o REPEE-RNEER EABE
tEE R

NFE+ZH=+—H 31 December 2008
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December
2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent
less the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

RKE

Group
—BENF —TTHH
2008 2007
AR¥E T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEROTEEMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 830,842 798,450
R BR R R iR Trade and bills payables 286,969 305,887
HEi e IB N EETFRIE  Other payables and accruals 283,998 119,959
FET R A T 50E Due to related parties 1,368 1,009
BHERE2EEDY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (238,141) (233,384)
B 5 Net debt 1,165,036 991,921
MR E AR LR Equity attributable to equity holders 2,860,387 2,469,118
Epk Hedging reserve (81,682) (195,951)
KR ERNBER Total adjusted capital 2,778,705 2,273,167
BEARNERFE Capital and net debt 3,943,741 3,265,088
EXRBELE Gearing ratio 30% 30%
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32. AiE 32. COMMITMENTS
(a) RERERIE (a) Operating lease commitments
REERBIIHESCEHELH The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
HMEEETMAEMERKSE - under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RZEZENF+ZA=+—H & At 31 December 2008, the Group had total future
SERETUHELCEHERR aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
IARKEHESHBBEHAT cancellable operating leases as follows:
AEE
Group
—BENFE DT
2008 2007
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1F R Within one year 20,014 13,511
F2EFELF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(RRERMF) 54,342 51,036
5 1& After five years 62,179 34,667
136,535 99,214
(b) EREE (b) Capital commitments
rEH
Group
—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SHESIER 3= Contracted, but not provided for:
BE T HERENR Acquisition of land use rights and
Y- RE LB property, plant and equipment 142,551 224,474
EEE - BRE REE Construction of property, plant and
equipment 24,831 26,438
167,382 250,912
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AYE (B) 32. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) FKxk#E () Water Use Right
AEE
Group
—EEN\F —EEEF
2008 2007
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FA 7Kk Water Use Right - 76,000
(d RKFEEEBRHEEEHN (d) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
RZBEENF+ZA=+—8" As at 31 December 2008, the Group had
TEBEBREBERFERBINES commitments in respect of outstanding forward foreign
“BEMEAREI0EAR(ZE exchange contracts to sell US$273,500,000 (2007:
TEF1EAAZE2@ARN)EE US$490,000,000) for approximately RMB1,869,263,000
273,500,000 T (ZEZF L F: (2007: approximately RMB3,588,555,000) within periods
490,000,000% 7t ) LA EL 49 A ranging from 1 month to 10 months (2007: from 1 month
R #1,869,263,0007C (=TT £ to 22 months).
F - 89 AR %3,588,555,0007T ) °
RAREE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REER  AEBIARRBEEWE At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the Company
R RBE- had any significant contingent liabilities.
BEALIRS 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WE—HBRENERXAEEN S A
IHEMBEREERRTEEATE
N AT RBEEREE - HEES
Rl —J7 &5l - TR B R -

=
ﬁ

(a) AEBFTEEBABZHE

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control.

(a) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

AEE

Group
—EEN\F —EETLF
2008 2007
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EEREAERAEME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 7,551 8,289

EREFRE2E—FHBIAN
FATS R M 5E8 -

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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4. BBEAXTRS (&)
(b) HEEEALZXS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

154

*k

(1) B#HIL
BEBHA-—ZEZTLF+=
ARZ+—RAz%EH=E
SEEREEFEMNEEXS

NEI(TEMEBE])WE
MREEMILHEE 2 i
2T AR TEXRE:
EHBERENDBARE
153,000,0007T ©

(2) #4#&
BRAFBRESBFLZR
SN REERFAN G AR
BATETTIIERRS:

(1) Discontinuing

Pursuant to several agreements dated 21 December

2007, the Group acquired the land use rights of

land situated at Beilun District, Ningbo and industrial

complexes from Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co.,

Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) at an aggregate cash
consideration of approximately RMB153,000,000.

(2) Continuing

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

rEE
Group
—EENE —ZEELF
2008 2007
ARET R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMNEEHEME - Lease of property, plant and equipment
5 R i A from Shenzhou Properties * 8,468
REZRARRMEAE  Purchase of steam supply from Ningbo
BRAAE ([EHRBRER Mingyao Environmental Thermal
B])*tEZEA Power Co., Ltd. (“Mingyao Electric
Company”) ** 44,322 36,656
B AN KBS B2 Processing services provided by Ningbo
AAEMNKED Shenzhou Dagang Knitwear Co., Ltd.
RUEZ MI AR (“Shenzhou Dagang”) * 9,739 3,112
RARZEFRRER Purchase of packing materials from
RAE ([EEeE Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
mARl) TERES Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi
=Yk Packaging Company”) *** 24,467 20,851

M B 2 e BN K AR R B R AR

A& mIE ]
HRAEAARAREZERARES *
48% 1 o ©
ERBERAABAAQNREFR—ZH o

TERZBRBIES -

Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Dagang

the Company’s ultimate holding company.

Company’s ultimate holding company.

the Company’s executive director.

are controlled by

Mingyao Electric Company is owned as to 48% by the

Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of one of
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4. BEAETRSZ (&)
b) HEEALZRS (£)
MEEALZ FEREE IREEEA
AIMEEERFIRE Y AREERIERK
AT o

(c) EEREAL &
AEEHREBEBEALAUTEXR

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
The purchases and lease from the related parties were made
according to the published prices and conditions offered by the
related companies to their major customers.

(c) Balances with related parties
The Group had the following significant balances with its

R related parties:
rE
Group
—EENFE ZETLF
2008 2007
AR T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEATBEE A T FIB Due to related parties — Trade related
—HE5HH
EFEE MDA Huaxi Packaging Company 214 1,009
BRINE % Shenzhou Properties 1,154 -
1,368 1,009

35. #HLEM B K

EFeRN _ZENF=A-TRBHE
W AR T E AR K -

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2009.
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(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)
AEBRBRBAMBRRMEELEFRAER

AR REFEZEABEEANREE BER
DB REREEE M T

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and

minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+-A=+-BLEE /R+t=-A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—EEN\NF —ETT+F CETLERF —TTHF —TTNOF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ARBETRT ARBFTIT ARBTIT ARETFIT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
WA Revenue 4,822,596 3,655,613 2,979,530 2,482,984 2,116,907
& B AR Finance costs (51,417) (34,279) (15,081) (53,164) (20,347)
JEME—RBEE A BI%E4E  Share of results of
an associate - - - (7) (68)
B BT S EE A1 F B Profit before income tax 757,420 401,736 409,247 355,774 620,445
FigRiA X Income tax expense 56,968 6,352 (19,001) (2,429) (33,550)
FE 7 Profit for the year 700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345 586,895
IATRA TG Attributable to:
BREIREREA Equity holders of
the parent 699,380 406,882 389,031 351,487 587,539
DERRERER Minority Interests 1,072 1,206 1,215 1,858 (644)
700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345 586,895
EE-BER Assets, Liabilities and
LERRER Minority Interests
BEE Total assets 4,321,251 3,903,920 2,793,706 2,540,541 2,571,403
BEE Total liabilities (1,448,278)  (1,423,288) (719,390) (826,367)  (1,268,075)
PEREER Minority Interests (12,586) (11,514) (12,514) (12,152) (31,968)
2,860,387 2,469,118 2,061,802 1,702,022 1,271,360
i AEBEEHEZ_ZFTZTWNFE+_A=+—HIE Note: The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
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year ended 31 December 2004 and of the assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2004 have been extracted from the Company’s
prospectus dated 15 November 2005. Such summary was prepared
as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence
throughout these financial years and is presented on the basis as
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2005. The consolidated results of the Group for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 and the
consolidated assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group as
at 31 December 2007 and 2008 are those set out on pages 70 to
1565 of the financial statements.
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